
CITY OF DAPHNE 

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

MAY 19, 2014 

6:30 P.M. 

  

                                                                              
 1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 2.  ROLL CALL / INVOCATION /  Dr. Robert McKibben / Daphne United Methodist Church 

  
 3.  APPROVE MINUTES:        Emergency Special Called Council meeting minutes / May 2, 2014  

                                                      Council meeting minutes / May 5, 2014 

                                                      Council Work Session minutes / May 12, 2014 

 

PRESENTATION:     Huntingdon College / Graduating Class of 2014  / Gale Croft 

 

           

4. REPORT STANDING COMMITTEES: 
A. FINANCE COMMITTEE - Conaway        

   Review minutes / May 12
th
   

    1.)  Ordinances: 

          a.)    Appropriation of Funds:  Survey, Design & Letting for City Wide  

                            Infrastructure Projects / Ordinance 2014-24 

 

          2.)   Resolutions: 
                   a.)   Bid Award:  Oil & Lubricants / Martin Energy Services LLC / Resolution 2014-26 

                   b.)   Bid Award:  Park Chemicals / John Deere Landscapes, Inc. / Resolution 2014-27 

                   c.)   Bid Award :  Janitorial Supplies / Dade Paper / Resolution 2014-28 

                   d.)   Authorizing Issuance of Credit Cards:  Community Development & Revenue / Resolution 2014-25 

                   e.)   Enter Into a Membership with the Organization “Keep America Beautiful” 

                          and Create an Organizational Structure Task Group: “Keep Daphne Beautiful” (KDB) Team  /    

                          Resolution 2014-23 

 

        3.)   Financial Reports: 

 Treasurers Report / April 2014 

 Sales & Use Tax Collections /  March 2014 

 Lodging Tax Collections / March 2014 

 

B. BUILDINGS & PROPERTY  COMMITTEE -  Davis 

   Review minutes / May 5
th
  

  

C. PUBLIC SAFETY -  Rudicell        

D. CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  -  Scott 

    Review minutes / May 14
th
  

              a.)   Recommendation of Ordinance 2014-23 / Establishing a Policy for Events Held Within the City of Daphne 

 

E. PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY – LeJeune 

   Review minutes . / April 21
st
  

   Review Beautification minutes / May 7
th
  

   Review Museum minutes / April 14
th
  

   Review Environmental Advisory Committee minutes / April 28
th
  

 

 5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  
   A.  Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones         

   B.  Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway  

         Review minutes / April 23
rd

  

 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 1



 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                     MAY 19, 2014                                   PAGE   2 

 

 

   C.  Industrial Development Board – Davis    

   D.  Library Board - Lake  
D. Planning Commission – Scott  

     

 

   F.  Recreation Board - LeJeune 
   G. Utility Board - Fry  

 

6.  REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

     A.  Mayors Report             

     B.  City Attorney’s Report 

     C.  Department Head Comments 

     D.  City Clerk Report 

                                         

 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:   

 

8. RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

   

        RESOLUTIONS: 

a.)   Declaring Certain Property Surplus / 2 2003 Crown Vics. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2014-22 

 

b.)   Enter Into a Membership with the Organization “Keep America Beautiful” 

         and Create an Organizational Structure Task Group: “Keep Daphne  

         Beautiful” (KDB) Team. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2014-23 

 

c.)   Agreement with ALDOT: Project ACOA61155-ATRIP 02-05-35 / 

       Resurfacing Windsor & Ridgewood Drive (1.226 Miles)  

       City of Daphne – Baldwin County. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2014-24 

 

d.)   Authorizing Issuance of Credit Cards: Community Development &  

        Revenue. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2014-25 

 

e.)   Bid Award: Oil & Lubricants / Martin Energy Services. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2014-26 

 

f.)   Bid Award: Park Chemicals / John Deere Landscapes. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2014-27 

 

g.)  Bid Award: Janitorial Supplies / Dade Paper . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2014-28 

 

 

 ORDINANCES:         

 

       2
ND

 READ     

a.)   Appropriation of Funds:  Recreation HVAC. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2014-20 

 

b.)   Cancellation of: Website Integration for Animal Shelter & Library 

        Donation and Close the Credit Card Donation Bank Account. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2014-21 

 

c.)    Appropriation of Funds:  Hazard Weather / Emergency Duty Pay 

        during the January 2014 Ice Storm. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2014-22 

 

 

 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 2



 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                     MAY 19, 2014                                   PAGE   3 

 

 

 

 

         1
ST

 READ 
d.)    Establishing a Policy for Events Held Within the City of Daphne. . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2014-23 

 

e.)  Appropriating Funds: Survey, Design and Letting – City Wide 

       Infrastructure Projects. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-24 

 

 

 9.    COUNCIL COMMENTS        

10.  ADJOURN 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 3



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

CITY COUNCIL: 

 

COUNCILWOMAN CONAWAY    PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN RUDICELL     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN LAKE     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN LEJEUNE     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN DAVIS     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCIL PRESIDENT FRY    PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

MAYOR: 

MAYOR HAYGOOD     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

CITY CLERK: 

REBECCA HAYES      PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 

JAY ROSS       PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 4



MAY 2, 2014 

EMERGENCY SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

1.  CALL TO ORDER 

Council President Fry called the meeting to order at 4:00 p.m. 

 

2.  ROLL CALL 
 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:  John Lake Randy Fry; Ron Scott; Robin LeJeune; Joe Davis. 

 

ABSENT:  Tommie Conaway; 

 

Also present:  Mayor Dane Haygood; Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Jay Ross, City Attorney; Richard 

Johnson, Public Works Director; Suzanne Henson, Senior Accountant; Mike Hinson, Finance 

Director; Adrienne Jones, Director of Community Developmnt. 

 

 

3. ORDINANCE 2014-19 / APPROPRIATING FUNDS: EMERGENCY ROAD REPAIRS 

                                           RIDGEWOOD DRIVE & CAMELLIA LANE                                          

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to suspend the rules to consider Ordinance 2014-19.  Seconded by 

Councilman Scott. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 

Rudicell  Aye     LeJeune  Aye 

Lake   Aye     Davis   Aye 

Scott   Aye     Fry   Aye 

 

 

                                                  MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to waive the reading of Ordinance 2014-19.  Seconded by 

Councilman Scott. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adopt Ordinance 2014-19.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

Councilman Scott asked that Mr. Johnson give a explanation for the process, timing, selection, etc. 

 

Mr. Johnson gave a power point presentation showing the damage to the roads, and said that the City Hall 

rain gauge registered 16.5 inches.  These two projects deal with roads that have been completely 

compromised. One is Ridgewood Drive between Sintabogue and Meadowbrook Circle.  Ridgewood Drive 

is an urban collector, and for those that would be dependent on that stretch of road for their normal route to 

US 90 via Bayview Drive their detour would be significant, as well as, other issues like school bus traffic, 

and even Public works side with Solid Waste Management, and things of that nature.  They did work with 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 5



MAY 2, 2014 

EMERGENCY SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

 

the on-call engineer to get a repair design, and they got it out to three qualified contractors, and gave them 

a very short period of time to work up a price.  ASI came in with the lowest bid of $107,924 with an 

alternative reduction if they go with recycled rip-rap which will save the city about $5,000 on that project.  

He and the engineers are inclined to take advantage of using the recycled product and saving a little bit of 

money.  The smaller project on Camellia Lane is a case of an old piece of infrastructure that had some 

compromises in its integrity, and those weaknesses were exploited by the rising waters, and they had a 

failure of the pipe that led to the failure of the road.  This was an area that failed back during Hurricane 

Danny, and the solution was they added a second culvert and the second culvert is concrete, and it did fine, 

but the old corrugated metal was at the end of its normal life span, and this will be a replacement of that 

culvert.  The biggest challenge was getting a contractor to even come look at it, because it was too big for 

the small guys and too small for the big guys, but they did get a qualified bidder to give them a price 

quote.  They are buying the pipe under the city’s contract, and luckily the new contract came in and saved 

the city a whole bunch of money, because under the old contract it would have been another $40 per linear 

feet on that pipe, and it is his and the engineers recommendation that council execute these two emergency 

contracts.  They did put in the Ridgewood design documents that they will have to start in the morning, if 

council finds it favorable to pass it, and they have to have that roadway open to traffic Monday morning.  

It will probably have a gravel surface instead of asphalt, and they will move off to the embankment and 

start the channel repairs.  The failure path on that, and they were fortunate that the structure, the drainage 

structure, as well as, the sewer structure under Ridgewood is intact, and it is not compromised. But, 

basically, what happened the road did over-top at the same time the head-cut was coming up from 

downstream upward, and a tree or two fell in as part of the normal erosion process or the abnormal erosion 

process, and that cut continued to come and completely come under the road and compromise the driving 

surface.  It is a pretty dramatic picture when you see the pictures, but it is something that has to be fixed.  

Repair does include hardening and armoring of that downstream condition for a good ways to ensure that 

if an event of this nature does occur again then the over-topping will not cause that head-cut to come into 

that embankment. 

 

Councilman Scott said at some point he would like for the council to be able to look at other parts of the 

whole Lake Forest infrastructure, really the whole city and if there are other potentials like this then they 

could have some kind of  proactive movement.  He said he appreciated HMR’s willingness to get in there 

and make this thing happen in a timely manner. 

 

Councilman Rudicell said in summary you are saying the product that they are going to have in the next 

two or three days in addition to the asphalting will be better than what was there prior to the storm? 

 

Mr. Johnson said correct. 

 

Mayor Haygood said he doesn’t not know who all has seen this particular damage on Ridgewood, and to 

think that they could have traffic back passing over that Monday morning will be quite remarkable.  He 

did not believe it, and it was repeated to him earlier and he talked with Mr. Johnson and sure enough it was 

in the specs, and if they can pull that off it will be a tremendous feat, and a tribute to the work that the 

Public Works department has done.  He was there the other day when two of the vendors that gave quotes  

were at the site, and they were amazed by how much erosion had occurred there.  He wanted to note that 

the appropriation is being made from the seven cent gas fund, and this is a restricted fund. 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 6



MAY 2, 2014 

EMERGENCY SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

 

They are hopeful and believe that this will be an eligible project, and will be reimbursed 75% of the cost 

by NRCS (National Resources Conservation Services).  They have worked hard, and they believe, at this 

point in time, that this will be reimbursable. 

 

Council President Fry said he too was skeptical when he talked with Mr. Johnson about the repair being 

done in two days.  He does not know exactly how that is going to be accomplished.  He asked if they are 

planning on bringing in some lights and working 24 hours, and how is the timing going to work? 

 

Mr. Johnson said he did not want to brag on ASI over any other contractor, because there are some good 

contractors in the area. Not to terribly long in the past they had a cross drain at Ridgewood and Penny 

Lane comes in, and they put in the same specification, and they had to cut both lanes of the road, as well 

as, go very, very deep and they had to do it over a weekend.  It was a miserable weekend for ASI, but 

when the sun had set on Sunday night they did have the lights out there, but when Monday morning came 

along people were able to drive over that spot.  So they are definitely capable.  Understand, the repair is 

not going to be completed on Monday morning.  The road bed is going to be intact and open to traffic, but 

there is going to be a great deal of repair work to be done on the embankment beside the road, as well as, 

the receiving channel below.  There is going to be additional drop structure, and that structure has to be 

built at a pre-cast yard, and he has already talked with Mr. Smith at ASI, and they are hoping they will 

have it on Thursday, but that is off the road and does not prevent the road from being used for the normal 

traffic patterns. 

 

Council President Fry asked once that is all finished there will be more down time to finish the actual 

roadway surface where it will be closed for a few hours a day? 

 

Mr. Johnson said it will be no different than what is going on in Lake Forest during construction hours 

Monday – Friday.  They will have flagmen that will direct traffic around and have one lane at a time traffic 

until they repair it.  A lot of the work they can conduct below grade or on an embankment or on the bottom 

that doesn’t affect the roadway.  When they get to the point where they are putting pavement down on the 

roadway they will have traffic diverted at that time.  He thinks ASI will be able to meet their expectations, 

especially, in the morning and in the evening rush that the road will be available to the folks to use. 

 

Council President Fry said he has been out there to look at the damage, and he thinks it is remarkable the 

job that has been done on the repaving and curbing on the entire Ridgewood Lake Forest system, and so 

soon after it is done to have to go in and do repair like this is tough, but it is part of it. 

 

Councilman Davis asked if there were any utility disruptions for any of the residents, sewer, water or 

anything like that of which you are aware? 

 

Mr. Johnson said not that he knows.  He knows a lot of lift stations went out, but that does not prevent 

them from utilizing their houses.  Utilities and Public Works were crossing one another’s paths on a 

regular basis for about 12-13 hours over the 29
th

 and 30
th

.  

 

 

 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 7



MAY 2, 2014 

EMERGENCY SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

 

Councilman Lake asked if they have looked at some of the homes that was flooded and see if there is 

something they could do in the future and address some of that, because they do not know if this will ever 

happen again? 

 

Mr. Johnson said the short answer is yes.  There is a fine line where the Public Works jurisdiction ends and 

the private property begins.  They are documenting everything, because he feels strongly that there will be 

some public assistance that will be available to private property owners that suffered damage, and are 

uninsured for, and ultimately the city documenting that up front helps that citizen in his future claim to get 

some relief through federal funds and public assistance, etc.  Mr. Johnson said they have submitted the 

initial damage assessment in dollars, as well as, in numbers to the local EMA and County who go to the 

state and eventually go to FEMA.  Right now, just in public infrastructure, there is about $800,000 worth 

of damages.  He feels pretty strongly, and they have already been given the heads up, that they will 

probably be meeting with some FEMA folks Monday, so he thinks that process is going to come into play, 

and a lot of these issues will probably be reimbursable through that, as well as, NRCS.  The good news is 

they went ahead and set the Ridgewood project in a 10 day cycle which is a requirement for NRCS.  

NRCS has money in two funds one is exingency which means emergency. He was hoping by 4:00 p.m. 

today to at least have word from them that they had prequalified the Ridgewood project, but he thinks it 

will come Monday.  After the meeting with their field representative they felt it was a good candidate, as 

well, they looked at Edgar, Piedmont and several others which fall into non-exingency, not quite an 

emergency, they felt these would be good candidate for NRCS monies as well. 

 

Council discussed the issue at length. 

 

Councilman Scott called for the question. 

 

                                                      MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

4. ADJOURN 

 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED                MOTION CARRIED 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 4:37 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 8



MAY 2, 2014 

EMERGENCY SPECIAL CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,    

                                                           

      
______________________________                                                            

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

                                                                     

        Certification of Presiding Officer: 

 

 

        _________________________________     

             Randy Fry, Council President 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 9



MAY 5, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e1
 

 

1.    CALL TO ORDER:  

There being a quorum present Council President Fry called the meeting to order at 6:32 p.m.       

 

2.    ROLL CALL/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

Pastor Stuart Davidson with the Eastern Shore Baptist Church gave the invocation 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:    

Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell; John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron Scott; Robin LeJeune; Joe Davis. 

 

Also present:  Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Sarah Toulson, Assistant City Clerk; Jay Ross, City 

Attorney; Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; Adrienne Jones, Community Development 

Director; David McKelroy, Recreation Director; Tonja Young, Library Director; Mike Hinson, 

Finance Director; David Carpenter, Police Chief; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center Director; 

Vickie Hinman, HR Director; Richard Merchant, Building Official; Dorothy Morrison, 

Beautification Committee and Downtown Redevelopment Authority; Larry Cooke, BZA; Al 

Guarisco, Village Point Foundation; Casey Zito, Downtown Redevelopment Authority; Annie 

Root, Daphne Art Center; Heiko Einfeld, Interim Director for Eastern Shore Chamber of 

Commerce. 

  

Absent: Mayor Dane Haygood; Michael Hoyt, Municipal Judge. 

 

3.    APPROVE MINUTES: 

April 21, 2014 Council meeting minutes 

There were no corrections to the April 21, 2014 council meeting minutes, and stand approved as 

written. 

 

April 25, 2014 Emergency Special Called Council meeting minutes 

There were no corrections to the April 25, 2014 Emergency Special Called council meeting 

minutes, and stand approved as written. 

 

CONGRATULATIONS:  Bayside Academy Chess Team / Alabama State Champions 

Council President Fry read and presented the proclamation to Mr. Eric Nager, the Chess Team 

and Ms. Sally Kalaris. 

 

PROCLAMATION:   “National Police Week” / May 11-17, 2014 

Council President Fry read and presented the proclamation to Chief Carpenter and Officer Carl 

Donnelly. 

 

PROCLAMATION:    “National Boaters Week”  /  May 17-23, 2014 

Council President Fry read and presented the proclamation to Commander Larry Jensen with the 

United States coast Guard Auxillary. 

 

 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 10



MAY 5, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e2
 

 

PROCLAMATION:  “National Public Works Day” /  May 18-24, 2014 

Council President Fry read and presented the proclamation to the Public Works Director Richard 

Johnson. 

 

 

4.    REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

      A.   FINANCE COMMITTEE – Conaway 

The minutes for the April 21
st
 meeting are in the packet.  

 

Treasurers Report 

Treasures report as of March 2014:   $17,306,059 

 

Sales & Use Tax Collections as of February 2014:  
$1,051,602.29  (Up $18,123.71 for the February budgeted collection and $21,905.41 year-to-

date over budgeted) 

 

Lodging Tax Collections 

$49,784.71 was collected for the month of February (which is down from 2013 - $54,207.03) 

 

      B.   BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE - Davis 
The committee met today before the council meeting, and the minutes will be in the next packet. 

 

      C.   PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE – Rudicell  

The next meeting is May 14
th

.  

 

      D.   CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE – Scott 

The next meeting will be May 14
th

 after the Public Safety meeting. 

 

      E.   PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE – LeJeune 

The next meeting will be May 19
th

.  Councilman LeJeune commended Richard Johnson and staff 

for the handling of the flood saying they did a great job.  He invited all to attend Public Works 

Day May 14
th

 at Lott Park. 

 

 

5.    REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMITTSIONS: 

      A.   Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones 

The April 3
rd

 minutes are in the packet. 

   

      B.   Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway 

The April minutes will be in the next packet.  The members approved the signs for Christ the 

King.  Casey Zito, Chairman, encouraged downtown businesses to apply for one of their mini-

grants. 

 

 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 11



MAY 5, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e3
 

 

      C.   Industrial Development Board – Davis 

The April 28
th

 minutes are in the packet.  The next meeting will be June 30
th

.  There will not be a 

meeting in May.  The board approved a revision of their By-Laws.  He mentioned that Ford 

Lumber is coming into the old Harley Davidson building on Highway 90 and BBB Industries is 

coming into the Renaissance Center.  He said these are the kind of businesses they will 

aggressively seek.  Algae Systems is doing well, and there will be a sign at the Bayfront 

explaining what is going on in the bay.  

 

      D.   Library Board – Lake 

The Teen group will be doing an etiquette class at the Library. 

 

      E.   Planning Commission – Scott 

The minutes for the March 27
th

 meeting and the staff report for the April 24
th

 meeting are in the 

packet.  Councilman Scott mentioned that Ford Lumber will have 30 employees.  The next 

meeting will be the fourth Thursday of the month. 

 

     F.   Recreation Board – LeJeune 

The next meeting will be May 14
th

 at 6:30 p.m. 

 

    G.   Utility Board – Fry 

The February 5
th

, February 26
th

 and March 26
th

 minutes are in the packet.  The next meeting will 

be May 28
th

 at 5:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers. 

 

 

6.    REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

       A.  Mayor’s Report 
No report. 

 

      B.  City Attorney’s Report 

No report. 

 

     C.   Department Head Comments 

James White—Fire Chief— reported there was a fire fatality in a subdivision off Highway 181. 

 

David McKelroy – Recreation Director – reported that Brown Bag by the Bay would be ongoing 

every Thursday from 11:30 a.m. – 1:30 p.m.  This weekend Trione will host the Mobile Bay 

Football tournament with 141 teams.  There will be 100 matches at Trione. May 18
th

 is the last of 

the Sunset Series with Mobile Big Band playing. 

 

Vickie Hinman - HR Director – reported there was a part-time fitness position open. 

 

Richard Johnson – Public Works Director – spoke regarding the rain event saying they are in 

the process of doing a comprehensive damage report.  They want to know about everything.  

There was a Federal Declaration and FEMA money available for those not covered by insurance.   

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 12



MAY 5, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e4
 

 

He will provide a damage assessment to FEMA.   He asked citizens to call in with damage to 

they can document it.   

 

     D.  City Clerk Report – Rebecca A. Hayes 
Mrs. Hayes thanked Mrs. Jewel Lawson and her friends for the luncheon provided for the city 

employees as a thank you for the work the city does for the community.  She has done this for a 

long time at least for the 14 years Mrs. Hayes has been with the city. 

         

Council President Fry recognized Mr. Heiko Einfeld who is the interim Director of the Chamber of 

Commerce following Ms. Benders departure. 

 
 

7.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Mr. Willie Williams – 1513 Pollard Road – spoke regarding discrimination practices going on at 

Daphne Utilities and asked council to investigate. 

 

Ms. Janet Lewis – 28201 8
th

 Avenue – spoke regarding what she feels is racism shown in 

decisions made by Daphne Utilities.  She asked council to investigate the allegations of pay 

discrimination and Federal lawsuits and other issues going on at the Utilities. She said people are 

not being treated fairly or equally at the Utilities. 

 

Mr. Michael Elhart, Sr. – 706 Daphmont Drive -  said he is abhorred by some things going on 

in the city.  He asked council three questions: 1.)  If you have three employees who drive a truck 

and all three have high school diplomas, no college why do all three receive different pay?  2.)  If 

you have a city worker who has been employed by the City of Daphne for four years and has a 

high school diploma, no college, then another person is hired and been there for six months and 

is put over the person that has been there for four years, where is the righteousness in that?  3.)  

Does a supervisor employed by the City of Daphne have authority to fire an employee, and if so 

what is the appeal process and how long should that appeal take? 

 

Ms. Annie Root – Daphne Art Center -  Casey Zito – Downtown Redevelopment Authority – 
mentioned to council that they are planning an event for the downtown area for June 28

th
 a 

community festival which will include farmers selling their produce.   This is a trial, and they 

want to get the restaurants involved and to give a boost to the Olde Towne District. She said this 

was an FYI and it would be coming before council soon for approval. 

 

Pastor Benny L. Richardson – 26644 County Road 54 West -   said that it abhorred him to listen 

to all that is going on that is unjust with Daphne Utilities. He read Micah 6:8 and said if council 

did not do something to turn all this around what God has wrought in the last week will only get 

worse.  

 

 

 

 

 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 13



MAY 5, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e5
 

 

 

8.    RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

         
        RESOLUTIONS: 

a.)   Bid Award: Concrete Pipe / Design Precast &* Pipe . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2014-19 

 

b.)  Bid Award: Plastic Pipe / Ferguson Waterworks . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2014-20 

 

c.)    Bid Award: Rock / Martin Marietta Materials Co. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2014-21 

  

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to waive the reading of Resolutions 2014-19, 

2014-20 and 2014-21  Seconded by Councilman Davis. 

 

                                          MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to adopt Resolution 2014-19, 2014-20 and 2014-21.  

Seconded by Councilman Davis. 

 

                                         MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

 

 ORDINANCES: 

 

       2
ND

 READ     
a.)   Revising Section 9.1, Section 9.10 and Section 10.6 of the Employee 

       Handbook. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2014-15 

 

b.)   Establishing a Policy for Community Grants. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-16 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Ordinances 2014-15 and 2014-16.  

Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

 

                                                      MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

a.)   Revising Section 9.1, Section 9.10 and Section 10.6 of the Employee 

       Handbook. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2014-15 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2014-15.  Seconded by Councilman Davis. 

 

                                                          MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 14



MAY 5, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e6
 

 

b.)   Establishing a Policy for Community Grants. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-16 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Ordinance 2014-16.  Seconded by Councilman Davis. 

 

                                                   MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

        1
ST

 READ 

a.)   Appropriation of Funds:  Recreation HVAC. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2014-20 

 

b.)   Cancellation of: Website Integration for Animal Shelter & Library 

        Donation and Close the Credit Card Donation Bank Account. . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2014-21 

 

c.)    Appropriation of Funds:  Hazard Weather / Emergency Duty Pay 

        during the January 2014 Ice Storm. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2014-22 

 

 

ORDINANCES 2014-20.  2014-21 and 2014-22 WERE MADE 1
ST

 READ 

 

 

 
9.    COUNCIL COMMENTS 

Councilwoman Conaway  said that she served as an alternate voting delegate at the Alabama League of 

Municipalities, and she attended some good classes, and wants to get with the Mayor regarding the 

budget. 

 

Councilman Rudicell said that it was nice having people come out to the council meeting, and 

seeing the chambers filled. He said Saturday is a Blue Star day at the Battleship on May 17
th

 

where organizations come for young retired veterans who served in Desert Storm, Iraqi Freedom 

and Afganistan, to get involved and help other veterans.  There will be booths set up with other 

Veterans organizations.  All are invited to come to this event. 

 

Councilman Scott commended Public Works and Public Safety for the response to the rain 

event.  Occasionally he has been critical of the Mayor, he guessed they all have at one time or 

another, and he is sure the Mayor has been critical of him too, but the Mayor showed up big time 

for the rain event.  He thinks the Mayor pulled an all-nighter.  When you are having to talk with 

people who have just been flooded, and lost everything they own the Mayor said it was hard to  

 

look at those people and see the panic in their eyes.  Councilman Scott commended the Mayor 

for the job, and he felt that the Mayor really stepped up.  He commented on situation with the 

Utility Board saying that he is not sure what council’s role will be, but they will consult with the 

City Attorney and see what else they can do other than appoint the board, because they have 

limited ability to do anything.  The Utility Board does not get paid, even though other Utility 

Boards do get paid, like the Park City Water Board which gets paid every time they go to a  

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 15



MAY 5, 2014 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e7
 

 

meeting.  Since they do not get paid that is not an incentive for rate increases.  He understands it 

is tough on everybody, and they will look and see what they are capable of doing, and asked the 

citizens to be patient. 

 

Councilman Davis paid a special tribute to the Public Works employees and Utility employees.  

He said it took a lot of effort and response to things for which they really had no plans.  He hopes 

they will look at their relationship with the Utility Board, because even though they are a 

separate entity harmony is important, and they need to enquire where they can go as a council to 

what is a serious concern.  He thanked the maintenance employees, the Mayor and Council 

where they responded, probably, faster than any of the cities around in dealing with getting roads 

open and dealing with the emergency situation.  He asked Mr. Johnson to tell the Public Works 

employees how important they are to them, because they are all in this together. 

 

Council President Fry said he appreciates all the city employees and Utility Board.  He said they 

both have great employees that are certainly dedicated people that go above and beyond when 

called upon.  They probably don’t get enough appreciation.  The Mayor is over hiring and firing 

for the city, and the General Manager of the Utilities has similar responsibilities.  It is a separate 

entity with separate directions.  They both have personnel documents that have to be filed.  He 

encouraged citizens to contact any council member and the Mayor will make himself available. 

He has no problem discussing any situation all they have to do is call him.  The numbers and 

email addresses are on the city’s website.  He thanked the City Clerk and Assistant City Clerk for 

their hard work, because they had opportunities to go above and beyond, as they have had two 

special called meetings in the last couple of weeks, and they had a big part to do as well getting 

everything together.  Proper legal procedure has to be followed to call a special meeting.  They 

had to distribute materials as well.  He said the City Clerk and Assistant City Clerk have done a 

good job in assisting council to make sure they were on track.  He also thanked his fellow 

council members for working together to get those issues resolved. 

 
10.   ADJOURN: 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS, THE MEETING 

ADJOURNED AT 8:00 P.M. 

 

Respectfully submitted by,                                  Certification of Presiding Officer 

                               

                                        

__________________________________   _____________________________   

Rebecca A. Hayaes     Randy Fry,     

City Clerk      Council President 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 16



MAY 12, 2014 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e1
 

   

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Tommie Conaway Pat Rudicell; John Lake; Randy Fry; 

Ron Scott; Robin LeJeune; Joe Davis. 

 

Also present: Mayor Dane Haygood; Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Jay Ross, City Attorney; 

Kevin Boucher, City Attorney; Mike Hinson, Finance Director; Richard Johnson, Public Works 

Director; Vickie Hinman, HR Director; Ashley Campbell, Environmental Programs Manager; 

Christine Ciancetta, Deputy Finance Director. 

 

Council President Fry called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 

 

1. UPDATE OF COMPREHENSIVE PLAN /  ADRIENNE JONES 

Mrs. Jones gave a power point presentation on updating the city’s comprehensive plan.  She 

would like to implement information she gained from attending a Planning conference in 

Atlanta. The Planning Commission should take the lead in developing the plan.  She suggested 

having multiple Public Hearings and community meetings for input, and attending committee 

meetings to get them involved in the process.  She would like to start this process in June. 

 

Consensus of Council is to support the Planning Commission in updating the Comprehensive 

Plan. 

 

 

2. RECREATION LOAN & REPAYMENT / COUNCILMNA LEJEUNE 
Councilman LeJeune discussed the loan to the Recreation Board from the Lodging tax and the work sheet 

handed out from the Finance Director, and he feels the items listed should have been maintenance by the 

city instead of a loan. He asked council to consider forgiveness of the $722,000 left on the loan so that the 

board can start accruing money to start on the facilities. 

 

Council discussed the issue coming to no consensus. 

 

Councilman LeJeune also discussed two possible locations for the Recreation facilities. He asked the 

Mayor to recap the Trione lease.  He said the property is owned by the States Trust for Public Lands and 

they lease it to the Board of Education and the Board of Education leases it to the city.  He is trying to get 

the state to convey all the property to the city including an extra 15-20 acres that are at the complex.  It is 

pending at this time with no time frame. He discussed the property on Park Drive saying there are hurdles 

associated with this property.  There are cliffs and wetlands and a big hole to the right of the wetlands.  

Councilman LeJeune said it would be a huge investment any way they went with this property.  He said if 

they can get the Trione property there is some property that can be purchased behind the church across the 

street.  He said council needs to decide where they want to go with this project. He wants council to make 

the best and right decision for the city.  He wants council’s input on the issue.  He said this will take a 

commitment from the city to make the recreation facilities happen, not just from the lodging tax.  He 

would like to have the engineering report done on the cost and what needs to be done. 

 

Consensus of council was to have more discussions on this subject. 

 

 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 17



MAY 12, 2014 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e2
 

 

3. ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT / STRATEGIC PLAN / COUNCILMAN DAVIS 

Councilman Davis reported on the trip that he took with the Chamber of Commerce to Memphis and 

Germantown, Tennessee.  Looking at these cities and how they do things showed him that they need to 

resurrect the Strategic Plan and look at it in a different perspective.  He worked with the Mayor and Jane 

on a Request for Proposal (RFP) for a consultant.  He handed out the proposed RFP which included a list 

of facilitators.  He also handed out a map highlighting areas for potential growth.  He outlined ways the 

IDB could help with scouting out companies to bring into the city. 

 

4. STREAMING OF COUNCIL MEETING RECORDING / MAYOR HAYGOOD 

Mayor Haygood said he would like to in the future stream the audio recording of the council meetings on 

the website.  He said that you have live audio, archive audio, live video and archive video.  He would 

like to explore providing that for citizens who cannot make it to the council meetings.  He said it would 

not take a lot of money to open it up.   

 

 

5. ANYTHING ELSE DEEMED NECESSARY  

No other business to discuss. 

 

8.  ADJOURN 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 8:00 p.m. 

 

 

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,         Certification of Presiding Officer:  

                                                     

                               

___________________________         _____________________________                                                                                  

Rebecca A. Hayes          Pat Rudicell 

City Clerk                                                            Council President Pro tem                                           

                                               

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 18



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 19



 

 

 

REPORT  

OF  

STANDING COMMITTEES 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 20



CITY OF DAPHNE 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 
   MAY 12, 2014 

4:00 P.M. 
 
I.      CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 
The meeting was called to order at    4:02 p.m.  Present were Chairperson Mrs. Conaway, Councilman Ron 
Scott, Councilman Joseph Davis, Mayor Dane Haygood, Finance Director Mike Hinson, Senior Accountant 
Suzânne Henson, Accounting Technician Sue Moody,  and Revenue Officer Angie Phillips. 
 
Also in attendance were Human Resource Director Vickie Hinman, Public Works Director Richard Johnson,                    
and Civic Center Director Margaret Thigpen, and Recreation Director David McKelroy. 
 

I.      PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 

A. Scott Hunter, Tim James, & Matt Adams, Raymond James – Discuss Refunding 
Opportunities for  2003 & 2006 Warrants 

 
Mr. Scott Hunter introduced Mr. Tim James and Mr. Matt Adams.  Mr. Hunter gave the history of 
Raymond James.  Mr. James stated Raymond James was #1 in the country for number of Bond 
Issues underwritten and they will get the City the lowest interest rate.  Mr. James noted Raymond 
James has a strong capital base.  Mr. Adams reviewed the list of Alabama customers and their rate 
history over time.  Mr. Adams reviewed the information concerning the refunding opportunities for the 
Series 2003 and 2006 Warrants.  Mr. Adams noted there are two components in determining when to 
refinance: 1) Interest Rate & 2) Fees charged.  Mr. Adams noted the interest rate difference will be 
approximately ¼% if the City refinances amount stays below $10 million (Bank Qualified rate).  Mr. 
Adams continued that all of the 2003 Warrant could be refinanced at 1.34% - $64,947 savings and 
part of 2006 Warrant (approx. 50% is eligible according to IRS rules – but only $7,730,000 is recommended to 

be refinanced in order to remain under $10 million to remain bank qualified)  at 2.55%  - $556,579 savings 
for an overall PV Savings of $621,526. (Savings listed are net of all fees & expenses).  

 
B. Ken Funderburk & Ty Tyson, Merchant Capital – Discuss Refunding 

Opportunities for  2003 & 2006 Warrants 
 
Mr. Funderburk gave an overview of Merchant Capital’s history and noted they had been in business 
for 27 years, they have an office in Georgia but most of their business is in Alabama. Mr. Funderburk 
reviewed their list of Alabama customers and noted that Merchant Capital had handled the City of 
Daphne’s 1992-1993 Bond Issue.  Mr. Funderburk presented a news article listing them as #1 in 
Alabama.  Mr. Funderburk continued reviewing the City’s financials and congratulating the City on 
doing a good job managing its debt.  Mr. Funderburk stated that Standard & Poor’s currently rates the 
City of Daphne as “AA” with a stable outlook.  Mr. Tyson continued reviewing the information 
concerning the refunding and noted the 2003 Warrant would have a PV savings of $74,941 with 
interest rates moving from 3.75% to .83% and 2006 PV Savings of $518,821 with interest rates 
moving from 4.5% to 2.4%.  Mr. Tyson noted there would be more savings to refund both the 2003 & 
2006 at the same time with total PV Savings of $642,157 with interest rates moving from 4.44% to 
2.31% (net of expenses) or Savings taken at closing - $589,252. 
 

Mr. Scott asked for the Finance Director to compare the presentations and make a 
recommendation on the refinancing options. 

 
 
 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 21



Finance Minutes  2  

C. Review completed FY2014 Annual Audit – CAFR, Mr. Mark Chapman, Smith,     
Dukes, & Buckalew 
  

Mr. Chapman reviewed the City’s Fiscal Year 2013 Annual Audit and CAFR and noted the financial were really 
clean.  Mr. Chapman noted that he was reporting on the audit a little later this year due to the Renaissance 
Center audit was not complete until the last week of April (they are a component unit reported on the City’s 
financials) and that and the new Finance Director did not come on the job until the week prior to the end of the 
2013 fiscal year.  Mr. Chapman stated there is a lot to pulling the audit together and that Mrs. Kichler,  Mr. 
Hinson, and staff worked together to prepare the audit.  Mr. Chapman stated that like every other year this year 
they also issued an unqualified opinion.  Mr. Chapman reviewed the auditor’s letter and noted there were no 
notable conditions reported. 
 
 

III.    HUMAN RESOURCES BUSINESS 
 

       A.  Update on Human Resources Department Activity 
       
Mrs. Vickie Hinman reviewed the Human Resource Report including open position status. 
 

Positions      Status 

Recreation Program Coordinator   Pending 

PT HR Technician     Pending 

Recreation PSW     Promotion: 5/15/14 

PT Public Service Worker    Posting: 5/9-5/23 

Corrections Officer     DOH: 5/29/14 

Library Computer Services Technician   Pending 

Public Works Intern     Pre-employment process 

Mechanical Admin. Tech.    Interviewing 

 

Safety Committee meeting was held on May 7, 2014.  Report of City employee injuries and property damages 

year-to-date was given. The Committee is currently reviewing the cost of ordering “cooling towels” for 

employees in Public Works for the summer.    

 

Next Safety Committee meeting on May 28, 2014 at 10:00 a.m. 

 

HR projects/meetings: 

 Departmental Merit increase requests due April 30, 2014.  Submitted requests are being reviewed by the 

Mayor. 

 Currently keying in all employee evaluations. 

 Employee Benefits/Wellness Fair date is August 13.  Sending out notices to vendors. 

 Processing Volunteer Firefighter applications 

 Processing New Employee folders 

 

Mrs. Hinman noted the Recreation Program Coordinator position was still pending and they were 

trying to decide if they needed to re-post the position.  Mr. Scott asked what the problem was with the 

position.  The Mayor stated they advertised the position and received some applicants and he had been 

discussing with the Mr. McKelroy, Recreation Director concerning what we are looking to do with this 

position.  The Mayor stated this is really a hybrid of two positions and really those two sides are not 

compatible.  The Mayor noted that one side is truly a marketing side of sports events (preparing 

banners, ect…) and the other is more onsite recreation-tournament related activities.  The Mayor stated 

he would get with the Recreation Director and HR Director and make it happen.  Mrs. Hinman noted 

the HR Part time Technician was still pending but after a meeting with the Mayor last week she 

thought she could get that position posted. 

 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 22



Finance Minutes  3  

Mrs. Hinman reviewed the status of the remainder of the positions and stated that as of today the 

Mechanical Administrative position is in the pre-employment process.  . 

 

The merit requests have been submitted to the Mayor and he is reviewing those. Mrs. Hinman noted 

that they are reviewing volunteer firefighter applications and that they had to go through the same 

background checks as other employees.  Mr. Scott continued discussing the process of City 

department’s using interns and what a value they are to the City.  Mr. Johnson discussed how valuable 

utilizing an intern has been in Public Works.  Mr. Lake discussed the Library Computer Services 

Technician position and the possibility of creating a City IT Department.  The Mayor noted he had 

started using the Library position as a backup for Rick Whitehead, IT Coordinator.  The Mayor noted 

that the Police Department is right now consuming 80-85% of Mr. Whitehead time and that we 

currently have too many eggs in one basket and Mr. Whitehead is spread too thin and until we get this 

Library position filled it will create a liability for the City.  Mrs. Conaway asked what we do if Mr. 

Whitehead is out?  The Mayor stated that the City does have one outside consultant on retainer we can 

use but he agreed with Mr. Lake that we need to grow the IT department. 

 

 

IV. CURRENT BUSINESS 
 

A.  Financial Reports 

 
1. Treasurer’s Report:  March, 2014 

 
    Mr. Hinson reviewed the Treasurer’s Report and noted three important numbers to pay attention to:  

 Total Unrestricted Funds - $11,657,656 

 Increase from Last Year’s Unrestricted Funds - $746,100   

 # of months of Unrestricted cash to cover monthly operating Expenses & Debt Service - 5.3 months 
 
           .   

The Treasurer’s Report as of April 30, 2014 Total Unrestricted Funds - $11,657,656 and 
Total City Funds - $17,470,406 was presented and will be filed for audit.  
 

2.  Sales and Use Taxes:  March, 2014 
 

Mr. Hinson reviewed the Sales & Use Tax Reports and Graphs ($1,205,342.67 was collected for March 2014)  and 
reviewed two important numbers to pay attention to: 

 YTD Variance over Budget - $7,185.51;  + .1% 

 Percent change from last year’s collections .. +4.3%  
.   
 

3.  Lodging Tax Collections,  March, 2014 

 
Mr. Hinson reviewed the Lodging Tax Collections Report and noted the collections for March 2014 were 
$71,954.97 which is up from March 2013’s collections - $64,325.47.  

 YTD Variance over Budget– ($766); (.1%) 

 Percentage change from last year’s collection .. (1.77%) 
Discussion continued on the next month’s Lodging Tax collections will reflect the April 2014 rate 
increase (4% to 6%). 
 

5. Report: New Business Licenses – April, 2014    
      
Mrs. Phillips reviewed the Business Licenses Report.  Mrs. Phillips noted that total business license issued YTD 
were down 27 from last year.  Mrs. Phillips noted that 229 licenses issued for April, up 91 from April 2013 (138 
licenses issued).  Mrs. Phillips continued that of the 229 Business License issued, 142 were renewals, and 71 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 23



Finance Minutes  4  

new businesses with 8 of those having a physical location in Daphne and 16 were prior year licenses.  Mrs. 
Phillips provided a map showing each of the 8 new businesses locations for Council.  Mr. Davis asked what the 
process was for collecting delinquent taxes.  Mrs. Phillips reviewed that she is currently going through a 110 
page Delinquency report which includes some cleanup work.  Mr. Davis emphasized it is not fair for some 
customers to consistently be late and consideration should be given to getting some additional help in Revenue 
to clear up these delinquencies.  Mr. Scott noted there is a penalty for late payments.  Mr. Lake agreed the 
Revenue Department is short staffed.  Discussion continued on the increase in businesses selling E-Cigarettes 
and the need to address if a policy on the usage in public areas is needed.  Mrs. Thigpen stated it has become 
more of an issue at Civic Center events. 

   
6.  Bills Paid Reports –  April, 2014 

The Bills Paid Report was presented in the packet. Discussion continued on various charges including 
legal fees and Utility Board payments.  Mr. Davis asked about Wal-Mart purchases verses purchasing 
from Sam's Club. Mr. McKelroy responded that some items he purchases for the concession stand 
supplies are only available at Sam’s Club where some are only available from Wal-Mart.  
 

D. Appropriation Request: (Ordinance) 
 

1. Fire Truck Purchase – H-GAC Purchasing Coop - $659,000(used) / $751,000(new). 
 

Mrs. Henson noted that Chief White could not attend the meeting but wanted her to just make the 
Committee members aware that the Public Safety Committee forwarded the purchase of the fire truck 
to the Finance Committee and that he has found a demo unit at a cost of $659,000 versus a new unit 
at $751,000 ($92,000 savings).  Mr. Johnson discussed he has had favorable experience purchasing 
demo unit vehicles for  Public Works and noted this is an opportunity for a bargain and the demo unit 
might not be there for long.  Chief White is researching purchasing the truck through the H-GAC 
cooperative agency which is approved by the State of Alabama.    Mrs. Henson noted that Chief White 
also noted that the Fire Department planned on selling one of the older Fire Trucks.  Mr. Lake asked 
about GSA and cooperative purchasing agencies.  Mrs. Henson explained that municipalities can now 
purchase through state approved cooperative agencies such as GSA, H-GAC, US Communities, and 
ect…  Mr. Scott asked didn’t the City have to consider the State contract first.  Mrs. Henson answered 
yes if the State contract is less than the cooperative purchasing agency then the item(s) must be 
purchased through the State contract if the City does not have a current bid contract. Mr. Rudicell 
made a note that if the truck was approved for purchase for FY2015 that Council did need to keep in 
mind that other capital request may have to be pushed back.  The Mayor noted he wanted to speak 
with Chief White to see what all the funding options were and noted that some previous purchases 
had been funded by the Volunteer Fire Firefighters.  
 
Discussion continued that the purchase request needs to come back to Finance Committee once 
more information is obtained. 

 
2. City Wide Infrastructure Projects resulting from April 29-30, 2014 Rains - $83,508 

(Survey, Design, & Letting Cost)  
(Total Projects cost-$1,543,280 -/Less Ridgewood & Camellia $146,522 = $1,396,758 / City’s estimated 
share - $293,302) 

a. 04-2014-RE3 - Lancaster Way Preble-Rish  $  3,675.00 
b. 04-2014-RE4 - CR13 Drainage Volkert   $ 14,250.00 
c. 04-2014-RE5 - Gator Alley- HMR   $  4,020.00 
d. 04-2014-RE6 - Rolling Hill Drive Hatch-Mott  $48,438.00 
e. 04-2014-RE7 - Piedmont Circle Preble-Rish  $  7,875.00 
f. 04-2014-RE8 – Edgar Circle/ 

  Melanie Loop HMR   $14,250.00 
   Total Survey, Design & Letting Cost:  $92,508.00  

 
 
 
 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 24



Finance Minutes  5  

 
Mr. Johnson reviewed the City wide Infrastructure Projects presented and stated that he and Mrs. 
Ashley Campbell have been in frequent contact with NRCS and FEMA concerning eligibility for 
reimbursement.  Mr. Johnson noted he does not have an answer yet on funding but discussions are in 
play.  Mr. Johnson noted that funds that are eligible for reimbursement from NRCS and FEMA could 
take a while to be reimbursed.  Mrs. Henson noted that it could take up to a year for reimbursement.  
The Mayor noted the fund source would need to be evaluated so a fund would not be depleted.  Mr. 
Johnson reviewed the Rolling Hill project and that he does not recommend patching and emphasized 
the need to get to the root of the problem at this location.  Mr. Johnson noted the Rolling Hill area is 
40 years old and it needs additional evaluation.  Mr. Johnson noted that any reimbursement would be 
for repairs so if the City improves the structure beyond a repair that cost would be the City’s.  Mr. 
Johnson noted has the City has an approved engineer fee schedule and that helps keep the 
engineering cost for the City consistent for these type projects.   
 
Discussion continued on which fund the monies would come from.  Mr. Hinson recommended the 
funds come out of the Capital Reserve Fund. 
 

Motion by Mr. Scott to appropriate  $92,508 from Capital Reserve Fund  for the Survey,  
Design& Letting of the City Wide Infrastructure projects as follows: 
a. 04-2014-RE3 - Lancaster Way- Preble-Rish  $  3,675.00 
b. 04-2014-RE4 - CR13 Drainage- Volkert   $  5,250.00 
c. 04-2014-RE5 - Gator Alley- HMR   $  4,020.00 
d. 04-2014-RE6 - Rolling Hill Drive-Hatch-Mott  $48,438.00 
e. 04-2014-RE7 - Piedmont Circle-Preble-Rish  $  7,875.00 
f. 04-2014-RE8 – Edgar Circle/ 
                                   Melanie Loop- HMR   $14,250.00 
  Total Survey, Design & Letting Cost:  $92,508.00                                                     

Seconded by Mr. Lake .  Motion carried. 

 
E. Bids: (Resolution) 

1.  2014-I-PARKS CHEMICALS  
Mr. McKelroy submitted a  recommendation to award to the low bidder John Deere Landscapes, Inc..   

2. 2014- J-OIL & LUBRICANTS 
Mr. Johnson submitted a recommendation to award to the sole bidder Martin Energy Services, LLC.  

3.  2014-K-JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 
Mr. Johnson submitted a recommendation to award to the low bidder Dade Paper.   

 
Mr. Johnson noted all recommendation were to award to the low bidders as presented. 

 

Motion by Mr. Scott  to recommend to Council to award the following bids per unit cost 
as bid: 
1.  2014-I-PARKS CHEMICALS – John Deere Landscapes, Inc.   
2.  2014-J-OIL & LUBRICANTS – Martin Energy Services, LLC 
3.  2014-K-JANITORIAL SUPPLIES – Dade Paper 

Seconded by Mr. Lake.  Motion carried. 
 

F.  Authorize the Issuance of Credit Cards: Community Development & Revenue   
Mr. Hinson stated that employees in Community Development and Revenue have had to use a City 
credit card from other departments for the training events they attend and sometimes it has become 
difficult to find a department that was not using their card at the same time.  Mr. Hinson stated that 
each of these departments need a City credit card assigned to their department. 

 

Motion by Mr. Scott  to recommend to Council to adopt a Resolution to issue a City 
credit card to the Community Development and Revenue Departments: 
1.  Community Development    

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 25



Finance Minutes  6  

2.  Revenue 

Seconded by Mr. Lake.  Motion carried. 
 

 
 

G.  Keep America Beautiful 
 

Mr. Lake made a motion to grant the membership for Keep America Beautiful as presented.  There 
was further discussion that the application fee (one –time certification fee based on population) is 
$3,000 which would be paid out of the Beautification budget line item (FY14 Budget-$15,000).  The 
Mayor noted this is a worthy organization and a good thing because it would be a coordinated effort to 
keep trash and litter picked up.  The Mayor noted someone had brought him the document to sign and 
he had some questions on the budget requirements.  The Mayor noted he had also met with Mrs. 
Morrison from the Beautification Committee to discuss his concerns.  The Mayor stated that the City 
of Pensacola and Saraland made a donation to the organization and Mobile and Pascagoula have this 
function set up as a department of the City.  The Mayor discussed that he just wanted to understand 
what the ground rules are.  Mr. Davis recommended that item #5 concerning estimated operating 
budgets be removed from the application or re-worded.  Mr. Johnson stated that the City is actually 
already performing the duties that Keep America Beautiful promotes so he was not sure an additional 
agreement is needed.  Mr. Lake discussed the City is already providing this type training referred to in 
the application so he does not see a problem with participating.  Mr. Davis emphasized again he felt 
#5 concerning estimated operating budgets should be removed. The Mayor stated he supported 
giving the organization a channel to do this project and he did not necessarily have a problem with the 
application but he wanted to address all the ground rules up front. 
 

Motion by Mr. Lake to recommend to Council to move forward with the membership 
with Keep America Beautiful and to adopt a Resolution authorizing the Mayor to sign 
any related documents. 
Seconded by Mr. Davis.  Motion carried. 
 
 

V. OLD BUSINESS 
 
 
VI. ADJOURN   The meeting adjourned at 6:18 p.m.  

 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 26



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 27



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 28



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 29



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 30



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 31



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 32



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 33



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 34



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 35



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 36



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 37



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 38



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 39



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 40



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 41



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 42



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 43



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 44



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 45



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 46



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 47



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 48



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 49



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 50



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 51



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 52



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 53



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 54



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 55



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 56



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 57



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 58



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 59



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 60



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 61



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 62



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 63



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 64



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 65



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 66



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 67



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 68



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 69



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 70



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 71



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 72



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 73



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 74



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 75



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 76



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 77



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 78



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 79



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 80



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 81



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 82



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 83



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 84



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 85



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 86



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 87



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 88



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 89



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 90



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 91



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 92



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 93



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 94



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 95



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 96



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 97



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 98



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 99



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 100



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 101



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 102



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 103



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 104



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 105



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 106



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 107



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 108



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 109



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 110



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 111



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 112



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 113



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 114



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 115



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 116



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 117



Buildings & Property Committee Meeting 

Monday, May 5, 2014 

5:30 PM 

Daphne City Hall- Executive Conference Room 

 

Committee Minutes 

Present: Councilman Joe Davis; Councilman Randy Fry; Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center 

Director; Sarah Toulson (Recording Secretary); Mike Hinson, Finance Director; Richard 

Johnson, Public Works Director; Richard Merchant, Building Official; Jay Ross, City Attorney; 

Suzanne Henson, Senior Accountant; Frank Barnett, Maintenance Supervisor; Al Guarisco, 

Village Point Foundation. 

Absent: Councilman Pat Rudicell, Rick Whitehead, Frank Barnett 

The meeting brought to order at 5:30 pm by Chairman Joe Davis. 

1. Approval of Minutes: April 7, 2014 

 

Motion by Mr. Fry to adopt the April 7, 2014 minutes as written.  Seconded by Mr. Rudicell.  

Motion carried unanimously.  

2. Civic Center & Bayfront report (April): Margaret Thigpen  

 

Margaret Thigpen distributed and discussed her April report.  April 2014 revenue totaled 

$19,720.50, an increase from April 2013 levels.  Year to Date revenues stood at $115,258.50, 

above figures listed for FY2013.  Additionally, Ms. Thigpen reported total deposits for April 

stood at $9,682.00, and that the Civic Center has seen 11 events during April, for a total of 15 

days used, not including setup days. 

 

Ms. Thigpen then turned to Bayfront Pavilion, reporting revenues for April totaling 

$8,619.00, above April 2013 levels, and year-to-date revenues totaling $41,672.00, an 

increase from 2013 numbers.  Additionally, Ms. Thigpen reported total deposits for April 

stood at $4,894.00, and that Bayfront Pavilion has seen 13 events during April, for a total of 

13 days used, not including setup days. 

 

Ms. Thigpen listed a number of recently passed and upcoming events scheduled at the Civic 

Center which are listed on her report herein.   

 

In addition, she reported that the rental HVAC chiller at the Civic Center had been installed 

and was running properly, and that the Civic Center staff had continued spring cleaning 

efforts. 

 

3. Civic Center Roof Leak Update 

 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 118



Ms. Thigpen handed out a diagram showing the locations of roof leakage at the Civic Center. 

Richard Johnson stated that the repairs could be done under an established state contract 

for an amount already budgeted. 

 

4. Building inspection monthly reports (April):  Richard Merchant 

 

Richard Merchant reviewed the building report information submitted to the committee, 

pointing out that 108 permits were filed during April, with 14 new residential starts. Total 

job cost was $3,520,197.75 with permit fees totaling $29,722.00.   

 

5. Replacement of HVAC Units for Recreation Building: Richard Johnson 

 

Mr. Richard Johnson informed the committee that the City Council would be seeing the 

ordinance to handle this issue as a first read at tonight’s City Council meeting. 

 

6. Bayfront Property: Al Guarisco 

 

Al Guarisco reported that there had been some road washout at the Village Point Park 

Preserve.  Richard Johnson gave the following updates on improvements previously 

considered by the committee: 

 

 Lightning rod for Jackson’s Oak: Mr. Johnson is currently looking into the costs and 

requirements.  

 Game cameras for Village Point cemetery: Public Works staff are currently working 

on obtaining game cameras for the cemetery.  

 

8. Tower Lease Agreement with Verizon Wireless: Jay Ross 

 

Mr. Ross explained the terms of the proposed agreement, which is included in the committee’s 

packet.  The committee discussed the matter extensively, questioning the specifications of the 

agreement, including whether or not the lease amount was a number comparable to other area 

leased towers. 

 

The committee postponed further consideration until additional information could be provided 

 

9. Algae Systems Information Dissemination 

 

Chairman Davis informed the committee that he had been in contact with Algae Systems, and 

would like to see about determining a method for providing publically available information on 

the Algae Systems project north of Bayfront Park. 

 

The committee recommended a kiosk be constructed away from the Pavilion. 

 

10. Insurance Oversight 

 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 119



Chairman Davis asked the committee to consider how the City could ensure that its interests are 

properly insured.  Mr. Fry recommended that the committee refresh its memory about the 

coverage the City currently has and see what gaps in coverage need to be addressed.  Mr. Fry 

volunteered to assist in this process. 

 

11. Other Business 

 

Chairman Davis mentioned that the proposed memorial policy was currently under 

development and would be ready for discussion in June.  Mr. Davis also mentioned that BARC’s 

representatives would be joining the committee in June to discuss a potential partnership. 

 

Surplus Resolution 

 

Ms. Suzanne Henson shared a Resolution to Declare Certain Property Surplus with the 

committee, which included two Ford Crown Victorias. 

 

Motion: Mr. Fry moved to favorably recommend both Resolutions to Declare Certain 

Personal Property Surplus and Authorize the Mayor to Dispose of Such Property to the City 

Council for approval, and was seconded by Mr. Davis.   

The Motion carried unanimously. 

 

 

With no further business to discuss, the meeting was adjourned at 6:22, motion by 

Mr. Rudicell and seconded by Mr. Fry. 

 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 120



CODE ENFORCEMENT / ORDINANCE COMMITTEE Page 1 
 

Code Enforcement / Ordinance Committee 
    Wednesday, May 14, 2014 

1705 Main Street 

Daphne, AL 

5:30 p.m. 

                                                                               

                                                                                    

Councilman Ron Scott, Chairman                                                       Councilman Pat Rudicell                                                           

Councilman Robin LeJeune                                                                Councilman Randy Fry 

 

 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL: 

 There being a quorum present Chairman Scott called the meeting to order at 5:35 p.m. 

 

 MEMBERS PRESENT:  Ron Scott; Randy Fry; Robin LeJeune; Pat Rudicell.   

 

Also present:  Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk, recording secretary; Kevin Boucher, Attorney; Mike 

Hinson, Finance Director; Angie Phillips, Revenue Officer 

 

II.  APPROVE MINUTES / April 9, 2014 

There were no corrections to the April 9, 2014 minutes, and stand approved as written. 

 

III. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
No one spoke. 

 

IV.      ORDINANCE REVIEW  

 

a.)    Proposed Ordinance Establishing a Policy for Events Held within the City of   

   Daphne 

 

The committee approved the revisions made at last months meeting. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Rudicell to recommend the proposed Ordinance Establishing a 

Policy for Events Held within the City of Daphne to the council for approval.  Seconded by 

Councilman LeJeune . 

 

                                           MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY  

 

 

       b.)    E-CIGARETTES 

Councilman Scott said this is a problem at the Civic Center. 

 

The committee discussed the issue, and felt they should be banned indoors at all city facilities. 

 

Consensus of the committee was to have an ordinance prepared for the next meeting banning e-

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 121



CODE ENFORCEMENT / ORDINANCE COMMITTEE Page 2 
 

cigarettes indoors at all city facilities.  Kevin will prepare the ordinance and have it at the next 

meeting    

 

 

V.     OTHER BUSINESS 
Councilman Scott requested that an ordinance requiring house numbers on houses be on next 

months agenda. 

 

VIII.   NEXT MEETING 
The next meeting will be June 11, 2014 

 

IX.   ADJOURN 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 6:00 p.m.  

 

 

Respectfully submitted 

 

 

 

Rebecca A. Hayes,   

Recording Secretary 
  

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 122



CITY OF DAPHNE Mayor Dane Haygood 

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MINUTES Councilwoman Tommie Conaway, District 1 

Time: 5:00 PM on April 21, 2014 Councilman John Lake, District 3 

Location: City Hall  Councilman Ron Scott, District 5       Councilman John Lake, District 3  

 Chairman - Councilman Robin LeJeune, District 6 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

 Meeting was called to order at 5:35 p.m. 

 Committee Members Present: Robin LeJeune (Chairman), Councilman John Lake, Councilman Ron 

Scott, Councilwoman Tommie Conaway; Richard D. Johnson-Public Works Director, Dorothy 

Morrison-Daphne Beautification Committee, and Michele T. Hanson, PWC secretary. 

 Others Present: Mike Hinson-Finance Director, Randy Davis, Councilman Joe Davis. 
 

II. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION & CORRESPONDENCE 
A. Work Request Report - The report for March 2014 was reviewed.  

B. Vehicle/Equipment Maintenance Report – The report for March 2014 was reviewed.  

Richard reported that the non-routine vehicle maintenance for mowing and grounds was 

swapping a bed from one truck to another. 

C. Correspondence – Richard reported that the 3 Circle Church had a group that reached out to 

us and wanted to volunteer and even in bad weather, they came out and done a lot of work in 

our parks.  We sent them a thank you letter and look forward to them coming again next year. 

D. Public Participation – 
 

III. OLD BUSINESS  

A. Minutes – The minutes from the March 17, 2014 meeting were reviewed and approved. 

Motion by Tommie Conaway, Seconded by John Lake to approve the minutes with 

corrections.  Motion carried. 

B. Mosquito Report – Mosquito spraying will start next month. 

C. Street Sweeper Reports – GEO Tracker has been sent back to Adapco for repairs and 

reformatting. 

 

IV. NEW BUSINESS 

A. 3 Circle Church Thank you letter – Discussed earlier under Correspondence. 

 

V. DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

A. Richard discussed several projects that would be starting soon.  Lake Forest Phase 4 was due 

to let in May and to start in July; North Main Street to let in June and to start in August; Gator 

Alley appraisal should be done by April 30th, then will be sent to ADLOT. 

 

VI. DAPHNE SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL AUTHORITY 

A. Monthly Equipment Use Report  -  The report for March 2014 was reviewed.   

B. Monthly Recycle Tonnage Report (Tonnage Comparison) – The report for March 2014 

was reviewed. Richard commented that we have had another good month, tonnage was up 

over last year. We’re at 34.67 % of goal, working hard to attain it. 

C. Solid Waste New Customer Report  -  The report for March 2014 was reviewed.  March is 

another banner month for adding new customers; We had 17 new residential and 1 

commerical. 

D. 2014-2024 Baldwin County Solid Waste Plan & Resolution of Support – Baldwin County 

is working to update their strategic solid waste plan, something that has to be done every 10 

years.  They have asked the City for a resolution stating our participation in the plan, which is 

in our best interest at this time. We have a right to leave at any time and develop our own plan.  

We asked for 2 things to be added to this plan: the C&D permitting for Tallent Lane and the 

right to pursue the development of a transfer station.  We have submitted our first permitting 

of our Tallent Lane facility; the Baldwin County Commission serves as the board for the Solid 

Waste Authority for the county and the first step to pursue an ADEM permit is called siting May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 123



approval, which has been submitted per their requirements; we’ve gotten all of our 

certifications, from State lands, Fish & Wildlife, Army Corp of Engineers for the County 

Work Session, then the request will go to SARPC for their approval.  

 

VII. MUSEUM COMMITTEE 

A. Minutes from March 10, 2014 meeting were reviewed.   

 

VIII. BEAUTIFICATION COMMITTEE 

A. Minutes from April 2, 2014 meeting were reviewed.  Dorothy commented that Patriot’s Point 

is progressing, Crape Myrtles are looking better on 98, still working on approval for the Keep 

Daphne Beautiful campaign and there is still sand on the 98 bridge @ Gator Alley. 

 

IX. ENVIRONMENTAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

A. Minutes from the March 24, 2014 meeting were reviewed. 

 

X. ENGINEER’S REPORT 

A. HMR –  

B. Hatch Mott MacDonald –  

C. Jade Consulting - 

 

XI. FUTURE BUSINESS 

A. Next Meeting for May 19, 2014. 

 

XII. ADJOURNMENT 

Meeting adjourned @ 6:20 p.m. 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 124



Daphne Beautification Committee Minutes 

May 7, 2014 

 

Attending: Selena Vaughn, Dana Sawyer, Michelle Hanson, Walter Gray, Pat Rudicell, Margie Bellue, 

Tomasina Werner, Rebecca Trosclair, Elaine Maximee, Christine Ciancetta, Dwayne Coley, Denise 

Penry, and Dorothy Morrison 

 

A-Gator Alley- the damage to the bridges is being assessed and repairs will begin as soon as possi-

ble….the rest of the project is on track……. 

 

B-Patriot’s Point ……was miraculously finished as the Master Gardner’s arrived….. still awaiting the 

logo for the front …….A motion was passed to have the same logo on the back side/ facing the parking 

lot with the words Patriot’s Point printed as well…….   

 

C-Balance $8,872.32 with $3,000 still being held for the Keep Daphne Beautiful expenses…..we were 

reminded that we need to spend our money by Sept or loose it. We voted to purchase several Christmas 

decoration for the 2015 season… totaling $750 and for the Court Yard clean up totaling $500. 

 

D-Top Ten List 

 We were told by Dwayne that Wal-Mart would be taking care of the vines in the trees on Hwy 98 

in front of their store ….. 

 The trees on the I-10 curve from Hwy 98 are a mess. Dwayne said the Mayor said take them 

out……..Can we get something done 

 Dirt from snow stores in Jan still on bridges on Hwy 98/Gator Alley Bridge- 3 months 

 Weeds/grass growing on the 98/I10 underpass again…… 

 I-10/181 exit needs attention Major entrance to town is unattractive- needs edging, pick up trash, 

etc. 

 Master Plan for Malfunction Junction 

 Daphne Ave/64 improvement to city land in front of the shopping center 

 Island on 64 at 98 waiting for the Mayor  

 Redesign entrances 

 Randall Ave corner improvement 

 

E-In Richard’s absence, Denise showed picture of the damage many areas suffered……we are all 

grateful it was no worse …..Public Works Day is Wed, the 14th  

 

F-Marjorie will order light bulbs when they are available….. then we will have an early Christmas 

Lighting Party[ Install new bulbs in the decorations] 

 

G-The Tennis court need more work and the Crape Myrtles will be ordered….the ones we had have 

been planted in other places……..we do have a list that was created several years ago with location that 

were waiting for Crape Myrtles…… 

 

H-Hwy 181 plantings no progress…… 

 

I-DRA is having the planter boxes replanted for the summer with red, white and blue plants…….The 

boxes are very popular and another Boy Scout is interested in recreating the project….. 

 

J-Bird House Brochure is moving along with now capable creator, paper purchased, drawing in the 

works……… 

 

District 1 
 

Dorothy Morrison, 
Chair 
Walter Gray 
 
District 4 
 

Selena Vaughn 
Dana Sawyer 
 
District 5 
 

David Dueitt 
Rebecca Trosclair 
 
District 6 
 

Elaine Maxime 
Hollie LeJeuune 
 
 
City Liaisons 
 

Marjorie Bellue 
Richard Johnson 
Dwayne Coley 
David McKelroy 
Denise Penry 
Michele Hanson 
Christine Ciancetta 
 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 125



K-American Flag Display…we should have 400 this summer…....we have been asked to have some flags on the 

east side of Hwy 98…….Hwy 64, the Traffic Circle, Park Road, Pollard Rd, requests have come for citizens for 

decoration on both sides of town … 

perhaps on 64 to 181 to start…. 

 

There was much regret expressed that Daphne was not doing a Memorial Day Service…The Beautification 

Committee will try to encourage the Mayor  and Council to have a Memorial Service at Patriot’s Point in 

2015…..Planned far in advance.    

 

L-Endowment Fund – no action has been taken waiting for the Attorney……… 

 

M-Mayor’s comments- The Mayor was not able to attend………. 

 

N- Next month time will be spent making plans for Arbor Day in Feb including time changes, selection for dif-

ferent trees, number of trees, where to plant the trees, publicity i.e. use of the message boards…..only 3 can be 

used we need to get that ordnance changed temporarily 

 

Councilman Rudicell suggestion that the Beautification Committee get information about plans for beautifying 

the parks system, there is a lot of money to be spend and we would like to create some of the plans that will take 

us forward ………We have professional landscaper, Master Gardner’s, and volunteer that have many years ex-

perience in designing beautiful areas for the City…….. 

 

Explanation-Also included in the packets were picture that showed the need for weed removal at Centennial 

Park and the need for planting around the quadrant of the Daphne Statue Fountain where the plaque was 

placed…. 

 

Thank you for your time and commitment to the Daphne Beautification Committee……. 

 

D………… 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 126



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 127



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 128



Meeting Minutes 

Monday, April 28, 2014 - 4:00 PM 

City of Daphne - Environmental Advisory Committee 

Daphne City Hall – Executive Boardroom 

 

1 
 

MEMBERS PRESENT: Bret Webb, Carl Pinyerd, Art Hosey, Chester McConnell, John Peterson, Richard 

Johnson, Ashley Campbell and Michele T. Hanson. 

Guest: Mike Shelton 

 

CALL TO ORDER  
Bret Webb called the meeting to order at 4:06 p.m.  

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: 

Motion by Chester McConnell, seconded by John Peterson to approve the March 24, 2014 minutes with 

corrections. Motion carried. Minutes were adopted.  

 

1) Presentation by Mike Shelton, Weeks Bay Coastal Training Program Coordinator. 

Mr. Shelton presented the committee with information regarding the Coastal Community Resilience Index. He 

has also made this presentation to the City Council.  Several community leaders, representing the city, met to 

discuss different scenarios of storms and how to prepare Daphne for this event.  The committee discussed at 

length the six elements of the tool; which are Critical Infrastructure & facilities, Transportation Issues, 

Community Plan & Agreements, Mitigation Measures, Business Plans and Social Systems.  The summary is 

attached for your review.  The results are an ongoing research.  The City of Daphne turned in a medium/high 

rating, getting a more formalize agreement with mutual aid systems and ecumenical groups. Become more 

involved with the local emergency planning committee through EMA, get a current response plan from 

Thomas Hospital, coordinate training for employees, directors, council & committee members, create 

incentives for residents to improve resilience , explore multi-lingual education opportunities. 

 

2) EAC By-laws 

Richard stated that the by-laws were not established or adopted. He recommends that we create some by-laws 

and will research the organizational meeting minutes and try to find what was discussed.  We do know that the 

meeting date was established as the 4
th
 Monday of the month.  He recommends that we do adopt a set of by-

laws and make them as simple as possible.  He will ask the city clerk to research other committee’s by-laws as 

a starting point.  Bret will send all the information he has. 

 

UPDATE ON PROJECTS: 

 

1. D’Olive Watershed 

Mobile Bay Estuary has signed contracts with NFWF and that has initiated the 6.7 million dollar grant and 

NEP has hired a consultant to work with them to design the projects.  The first set of projects will be in 

Spanish Fort & Daphne which includes Joes Branch.  Thompson Engineering will be doing this phase and 

has primary field work and are in the early stages of design. This is a true habitat & wetland restoration. 

 

2. Alligator Alley   

We did get released from ALDOT to start the property acquisition. We are having the appraisal done and 

hopefully that will be back the first part of May. We know we have a willing seller if the price is right. We 

are hopeful that we can advertise for bid in June and begin work in August.  

 

3. Forever Wild 

We have a Forever Wild nomination that was submitted by Village Point for 100 acres on D’Olive Bay for 

the purchase and preservation. Village Point is requesting a resolution of support from the City Council. We 

are in the process of writing that resolution to be sent to Building and Property Committee first and then to 

the Council.  In June, there is a meeting in Guntersville to discuss the projects to award the funds to, we are 

not in the top 3, but are still on the short list.  Selena Vaughn will be attending that meeting and take the 

resolution with her and hopefully move us up the list.   

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 129



Meeting Minutes 

Monday, April 28, 2014 - 4:00 PM 

City of Daphne - Environmental Advisory Committee 

Daphne City Hall – Executive Boardroom 

 

2 
 

4. Future LID Workshop 

There is a big emphasis on Low Impact Development and the NEP wants to see city’s with impaired 

watersheds to not just promote LID, but require it.  We want to educate local consultants regarding this, so 

once the Gator Alley project is started, Dr. Brantley wants to have a one day workshop to educate.  We will 

have more training in the fall as well. 

 

Auburn has a workshop on Bio-Retention and the use of it in the LID Handbook. I will send to Michele to 

email to everyone. 

 

Our annual ADEM audit was done and we are compliant.  We did not have our Construction Best 

Management Ordinance in place at the time of the audit however it has since been completed and adopted. 

 

NEW BUSINESS: 

No new business was discussed.  There was discussion on recruiting new members for the committee.  Richard 

stated that all we need is a resume and that they are a Daphne resident.  Richard thanked those who attended the 

Volunteer Breakfast for coming out. 

 

Next Meeting: There will be no meeting in May due to the Memorial Day Holiday. 

 

ADJOURN:  Motion by Carl Pinyerd, Seconded by John Peterson to adjourn.  Meeting adjourned at 4:58 

pm. 

 

 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 130



 

 

 

REPORT  

OF  

SPECIAL BOARDS 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 131



DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL 

April 23, 2014 
 
 

COMMITTEE MINUTES 
 

Members Present: Council Member Tommie Conaway, Dorothy Morrison, Debbie 
Strahley, Kennard Balme, Casey Zito, Doug Bailey, Patricia Vanderpool, Dayna 
Oldham 
 
Also Present: Sarah Toulson (Recording Secretary); Christine Ciancetta, Deputy 
Finance Director; Annie Root, Daphne Art Center; Stephanie Greenwood, Christ the 
King; Patricia Earst, Daphne Art Center 
 
Casey Zito called the meeting to order at 5:40 pm 
 
1. Approval of Minutes:  
 

Motion:  to approve the minutes from the February 19, 2014 meeting.  Moved by 
Dorothy Morrison, second by Debbie Strahley.   
 

Carried unanimously. 

 
2. Christ the King Signage Request 
 
Stephanie Greenwood of Christ the King presented information regarding a request 
to erect street signs to better direct visitors to the church and school. 
 

Motion:  to approve of the signage request presented by Christ the King.  Moved by 
Dayna Oldham, second by Dorothy Morrison.   
 

Carried unanimously. 

 
3. Guest: Annie Root, Daphne Art Center 
 
Ms. Annie Root discussed the DAC’s possible relocation to a building on Main Street, 
and an update on the Pop Up Art Show the DAC is planning.  The informal date for 
the event was set to be June 28th. 
 
4. Treasurer’s report 
 
Chairwoman Zito reported that the DRA currently had $112,896.88 on hand, after 
all approved expenses cleared. 
 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 132



  

Motion: to approve the Treasurer’s Report as given.  Moved by Dorothy Morrison, 
second by Kennard Balme. 
  

Carried unanimously. 

 
 
5. Beautification Report 
 
Dorothy Morrison reported that she had located possible flowers to be planted in 
the white flower boxes scattered throughout downtown.  She stated that the color 
scheme would tie in with the landscaping at Patriots’ Point.  She also mentioned that 
the committee was still attempting to formally establish a “Keep Daphne Beautiful” 
committee. 
 
6. DRA Website 
 
The committee members discussed the upcoming DRA website.  Mr. Kennard Balme 
suggested that the DRA follow the model shown by the website 
www.fairhopemerchants.com.   
 
Other improvements mentioned included the need to have working links and 
removing the area history from the home page. 
 
7. Other business discussed 
 
Maps 
 
Mr. Balme mentioned that he would check with members of the Olde Towne 
Development Association to see about printing more of the Olde Towne maps.   
 
DRA Logo 
 
The committee briefly discussed the development of a logo for the DRA, possibly to 
include a crab or other defining feature of downtown, such as an oak tree. 
 
Next meeting: May 28th at 5:30 pm. 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 7:00 pm. 
 
 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 133

http://www.fairhopemerchants.com/


 

 

 

REPORT  

OF  

OFFICERS 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 134



 

 

 

RESOLUTIONS 

& 

ORDINANCES 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 135



RESOLUTION 2014 - 22 
 
 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN PERSONAL PROPERTY SURPLUS  AND 
AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO DISPOSE OF SUCH PROPERTY 

 
WHEREAS,  the Department Heads of the City of Daphne have determined that the items listed 
below are no longer required for public or municipal purposes;  and 
 
WHEREAS, the items listed below are recommended for disposal. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,  by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne that  

1- The property listed below is hereby declared to be surplus property, and 
 

  
DEPT 

EQ/VEH# DESCRIPTION     VIN 

Det 203 2003 FORD CROWN VIC 2FAFP71W93X183802 

Det 303 2003 FORD CROWN VIC 2FAFP71W03X183803 

 
 
 

          2- The Mayor is authorized to advertise and accept bids through Govdeals.com as  
               contracted for the sale of such personal property, and 
 
          3-  The Mayor is authorized to sell said property to the highest bidder and deposit any and      
               all  proceeds to the General Fund.  The Mayor is further authorized to direct the           
               disposition of any property which is not claimed by any bidder. 
 
 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DAPHNE, ALABAMA, this               day of                     , 2014. 
           
      

                                                                                                                                                                                           

_____________________________ 

                                                                              Dane Haygood, Mayor 
       

 

ATTEST: 
___________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 
 

 

 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 136



 

RESOLUTION 2014-23 

 

Enter Into a Membership with the Organization: “Keep America Beautiful” and Create an 

Organizational Structure Task Group:  “Keep Daphne Beautiful” (KDB) Team 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne recognizes the health, safety, and welfare 

benefits derived by the citizens of Daphne through the affiliation with agencies such as Keep 

America Beautiful; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne has made appropriations for Beatification projects in its Fiscal 

2014 Budget  ($15,000) for the benefit of creating a healthier, safer, and more livable community 

environment; and   

 

WHEREAS, a one-time application fee (based on population) of $3,000 will would be paid out of 

the Beautification budget line item; and 

 

WHEREAS, a Keep Daphne Beautiful (KDB) Team will be created to serve as an Organizational 

Structure Task Group: and              . 

 

WHEREAS,  the KDB will have established bylaws as set by the City of Daphne with an 
established purpose to act in an advisory capacity to the City of Daphne Council through the 
Beautification and Public Works Committee on matters affecting the quality of the local aesthetic 
and to promote effective beautification, waste management and recycling strategies.  

 

WHEREAS, the KDB shall also promote efforts that increase public awareness of the impact 

of litter on City of Daphne and it shall sponsor and participate in City of Daphne litter removal 

and public awareness projects. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne 

that the Mayor is hereby authorized to execute the agreements necessary for the City to become a 

member and participate in the regional and national organization program “Keep America 

Beautiful”. 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, this _____ 

day of ____________, 2014. 

 

 

 

     _________________________________ 

     Dane Haygood, Mayor 

      

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

____________________________ 

Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk 

 
 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 137



 

BYLAWS FOR THE KEEP DAPHNE BEAUTIFUL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE 
 

 
 

Article I NAME 
This organization shall be known as the Keep Daphne Beautiful (KDB) an Organizational Structure 
Task Group Team of the Daphne Beautification Committee (DBC) of City of Daphne. 

 
Article II PURPOSE 
Section 1. KDB - The purpose of the KDB is to act in an advisory capacity to the City of Daphne 

City Council through the Daphne Beautification and Public Works Committee on matters 

affecting the quality of the local aesthetic and to promote litter prevention, effective 

beautification, waste management and recycling strategies. The KDB shall also promote efforts 

that increase public awareness of the impact of litter on City of Daphne and it shall sponsor and 

participate in City of Daphne litter removal and public awareness projects. 

 
Section 2. AFFILIATE - The KDB as a certified affiliate of “Keep America Beautiful”, a non- 

profit organization, supports the Keep America Beautiful mission of educating individuals about 

litter prevention and ways to reduce, reuse, recycle, and properly manage waste materials, thereby 

creating a healthier, safer, and more livable community environment. 

 
Section 3. OUTREACH and EDUCATION - The KDB shall conduct outreach and education 

on its programs and projects as “Keep Daphne Beautiful” 

 
Article III ORGANIZATION 
Section 1. MEMBERSHIP - The KDB shall consist of no fewer than 6 and no more than 10 

voting members who shall be residents, elected officials or employees of the City of Daphne. All 

voting members shall be appointed by the City Council for terms of two (2) years. Any member 

missing more than four (4) consecutive meetings without reasonable excuse shall, at the discretion 

of the Chairman, be dropped from membership. 

 
Section 2. COORDINATOR - The Coordinator is the Public Works Director, or his designee, to 

serve as staff liaison to the KDB. 

 
Section 3. OFFICERS - The KDB officers shall include a Chairman and Vice-Chairman (The 

Secretary shall be provided from the Public Works Administrative Staff and a Treasurer is not 

required as the KDB neither owns nor manages any assets.) The voting members of the KDB 

shall elect these officers each calendar year during the month of October. 

 
Article IV DUTIES OF OFFICERS 
Section 1. CHAIRMAN-the Chairman and the Coordinator shall set the agenda for KDB 

meetings. The Chairman shall preside over all KDB meetings and shall appoint all special/called 

committee chairmen, if special/called committees are needed to conduct the activities and 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 138



business of the KDB. The Chairman shall report from time to time to the City of Daphne Public 

Works Committee directly or through the Chairperson of the Daphne Beautification Committee. 
 

Section 2. VICE-CHAIRMAN-The Vice-Chairman shall act in the absence of the Chairman. If 

the Chairman becomes unable to serve during his term, the Vice-Chairman shall assume his 

responsibilities for the unexpired term. 

 
Section 3. SECRETARY-The Secretary shall take minutes and distribute the document to the 

members prior to the next meeting. 

 
Section 4. DUPLICATION OF JOB FUNCTIONS-Because the number of voting members of 

the KDB may be small, the positions of Coordinator and Secretary may be held by the same 

person. 

 
Article V OPERATIONS 
Section 1. OPERATIONAL EXPENSES – The KDB will report to the Daphne Beautification 
Committee (DBC) and will not be allocated any funds from the City of Daphne, nor shall they 
have any authority to request any allocation now or in the future from the City of Daphne. Day to 
day operational expenses (phone and computer access, copy reproduction, postage, stationary, 
envelopes, meeting space, etc…) shall be provided for and accommodated in the normal yearly 
operating budget of the Public Works Department. Initial and annual affiliation dues and any 
unique expenses for Projects, Outreach or Education shall come from funding allocated to and 
approved to be spent by the DBC. Any such funding motion shall require the approval of the 
Coordinator and Mayor. 

 
Section 2. VOLUNTEER RELATED EXPENSES – From time to time Volunteers associated 

with KDB may be required or desire to participate in regional and national training and 

conferences. The cost associated with participation (fees, travel, lodging, meals, etc…) in such 

Training and Conferences shall be wholly the responsibility of the Volunteer to bear and will be 

considered non-reimbursable by the City of Daphne. 

 
Section 3. CITY EMPLOYEE(S) RELATED EXPENSES – From time to time City employees 

associated with KDB may be required or desire to participate in regional and national training and 

conferences. The cost associated with participation (fees, travel, lodging, meals, etc…) in such 

Training and Conferences shall be approved by the Coordinator and are to be paid for out of the 

employees City Department Training/Conference/Travel Operational Budget. These 

Training/Travel expenses shall be available prior to approval and be compliant with City Travel 

Policy. 

 
Article VI QUORUM 
Three (3) or more of the voting members in good standing shall constitute a quorum for the 

transaction of KDB business. Quorums for separate committees shall be as decided at their first 

meeting. 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 139



Article VII MEETINGS 
The KDB shall hold regularly scheduled meetings as a subset of the DBC Meeting at a cycle 

specified by the Chairman and voting members. These meetings shall be public and interested 

citizens of City of Daphne are encouraged to attend. 

 
Article VIII AMENDMENTS 
The bylaws of the KDB shall be reviewed every two (2) years by an appointed committee. 

Proposed changes shall be brought before the KDB and may be accepted by a majority of the voting 

members at a quorum meeting. A copy of the proposed amendments shall be provided to all voting 

members and the Chairman at least one week prior to the meeting at which the vote is scheduled. 

Amendments to these bylaws shall become effective. 

 
 
 

 
      

AFFILIATION INFORMATION 
 
What is Keep America Beautiful’s formula for success? Since 1953, our organization has provided a 
replicable framework for community education and hands-on stewardship that reduces litter and 
encourages recycling, promotes grassroots volunteerism, and makes sustainable improvement 
possible for communities of all sizes. Affiliates have built upon this behavior change framework to 
create innovative, locally–focused programs that address the specific needs of their diverse 
geographies and populations. Using the fundamentals of our time-tested approach, our affiliates are 
reaching deep into their communities to effect meaningful, positive changes.  
 

WHY BE AN AFFILIATE 
Keep America Beautiful invites affiliates to share why affiliation is valuable. We have listed the top 
reasons provided by our affiliates 

 Self determination 
 National Network 
 National credibility 

 Training  
 Tools and Programs 
 Grants 

 

Affiliation Process 
KAB has two options for affiliation. A community may form an affiliate with no current organization or 
form through migration from an existing organization.  
 

Application: In both cases the process starts with forming a Team, obtaining a letter of support from 
the highest elected official for the jurisdiction interested in affiliation, securing the initial affiliation fee 
and submitting the application included in this packet.  
 

Training: In both cases the community is required to participate in training offered locally by KAB 
National Trainers. Two trainings are required:  

 Community Training includes an overview of KAB and its behavioral-based change process to 
dealing with community improvement issues. Trainers provide instructions to a Community 
Team on conducting the Community Appearance Index and Focus Area Survey to gather 
facts about your community.  

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 140



 

 Affiliation Training is conducted after the completion of the benchmarking tools and includes a 
more extensive discussion of the behavioral-based change process, how to implement KAB 
programs and a strategic planning and goal setting for the new affiliate board. 

 

Application Fee: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

*Existing organization may qualify to submit an application using the migration process. Please 
contact KAB for details. Please check www.kab.org or call 203.659.3032 to determine if your state 
has a State KAB Affiliate prior to submitting application as they may offer assistance with the 
application process. 
 
The one-time fee listed above supports the initial development of a new Keep America Beautiful 
affiliate including: 
 Training your Team including travel expenses for the KAB Trainer to your community 
 Training materials, including manuals, step-by-step instructions on developing your local 

organization, and other resources to assist in initial affiliate development  
 Mentoring and support by KAB Trainer throughout the process 
 Training of new Board by KAB Trainer (after Team has submitted complete Affiliate Report) 

including travel expenses for KAB Trainer to return to your community 
 Conducting affiliate planning and goal setting session to develop an action plan for the first year 
 Training for the executive director 
 KAB Trainers participation in the Affiliation Ceremony 
 Education training books and resource materials 
 The first year’s annual network service fee. 
 

Annual Affiliate Fee (due one year after Affiliation Ceremony) 

 

 

Population One-Time Certification Fee 
0 – 7,500 $ 1,000 
7,501 - 15,000 $ 2,000 
15,001 - 50,000 $ 3,000 
50,001+ $ 4,000 
Migration $1,000* 

Population                        Fee 
0 - 7,500   $ 50 
7,501 - 15,000  $ 100 
15,001 - 30,000  $ 150 
30,001 - 50,000  $ 200 
50,001 - 75,000  $ 250 
75,001 - 150,000  $ 300 
150,001 - 500,000  $ 350 
500,000 - 1 million  $ 400 
Over 1 million  $ 500 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 141



  

AFFILIATE APPLICATION  
1. Applicant:   
 

Community/City/Town/County/Parish Name: City of Daphne 

Population: 22,109 

Person requesting Affiliation (Name, Title): Mayor Dane Haygood 

Mailing address: P O Box 400 

City, State, Zip: Daphne, AL 36526 

Phone: 251-621-9000 

Email Address: mayor@daphneal.com 

 
2. Community Team:  
 

Team Leader (Name, Title): Richard D. Johnson, P. E., PW Director 

Shipping Address: 26435 Public Works Rd 

City, State, Zip: Daphne, AL 36526 

Phone: 251-621-3182 

Mobile Phone: 251-379-1305 

Email Address: rjohnson@daphneal.com 

 

Team Member (typically 6-9) Mailing Address Phone/Email 

1. Denise Penry 
 

26435 Public Works Rd 
Daphne, AL 36526 

251-621-3182 
dpenry@daphneal.com 

2. Michele Hanson 
 

26435 Public Works Rd 
Daphne, AL 36526 

251-621-3182 
mthanson@daphneal.com  

3. Dwayne Coley 
 

26435 Public Works Rd 
Daphne, AL 36526 

251-621-3182 
dcoley@daphneal.com  

4. Dorothy Morrison 
 

26435 Public Works Rd 
Daphne, AL 36526 

251-621-0831 
granauntdd@mchsi.com  

5. Patrick Rudicell 
 

Post Office Box 400 
Daphne, AL 36526 

251-621-9000 
Councildistrict2@daphneal.com  

6. Selena Vaughn 
 

26435 Public Works Rd 
Daphne, AL 36526 

251-605-6243 
selenacvaughn@att.net  

7. Rebecca Trosclair 
 

26435 Public Works Rd 
Daphne, AL 36526 

251-621-3296 
daphne2garden@hotmail.com  

8. 
 

 
 

 

9. 
 

 
 

 

 
3.   Please list any existing community improvement organizations (i.e. beautification committee, solid 

waste planning board, recycling committee, conservation organization, etc.).   
 

Organization Name By Whom Date Contacted 

Daphne Beautification Committee Richard Johnson 02/05/14 

 

Public Works Committee Richard Johnson 02/17/14 

 

 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 142

mailto:mayor@daphneal.com
mailto:dpenry@daphneal.com
mailto:mthanson@daphneal.com
mailto:dcoley@daphneal.com
mailto:granauntdd@mchsi.com
mailto:Councildistrict2@daphneal.com
mailto:selenacvaughn@att.net
mailto:daphne2garden@hotmail.com


4.   The Team will need assistance from local authorities responsible for litter, solid waste, and 
beautification. The Team will need to obtain map(s) and compile statistical information. Please list 
contacts (such as Public Works/Sanitation, Park, Planning, Engineering, or Community Services) 
who have been contacted about the intent to establish a KAB affiliate. 

 

Name Title Who Contacted 

Richard Johnson Public Works Director 
 

Richard Johnson 

  
 

 

  
 

 

 
5.    Estimated operating budgets vary from $1,000 to $750,000. Communities are urged to meet 

these needs through donations of goods and services. Provide potential source(s), which may 
provide cash or in-kind contributions e.g. city government in-kind or business donation.   

 

NEED POTENTIAL SOURCE 

Executive Director: Salary and Benefits City of Daphne funding 

Office space and furniture City of Daphne funding 

Telephone/DSL/Internet Access City of Daphne funding 

Office equipment i.e. computer, fax, copier City of Daphne funding 

Printing City of Daphne funding 

Postage City of Daphne funding 

Expenses for Training Workshops and Affiliation Ceremony (food, 
printing invitations) 

City of Daphne funding 

Travel expenses: 6 hours of training required annually to maintain 
Good Standing after affiliation (may be provided by KAB, state 
affiliate, or other source and can be Webinars at not travel cost). 

City of Daphne funding 

 

Complete application includes this form, a letter of endorsement from the chief elected official 

(Mayor, Council President, etc.), and application fee based on population. Make check payable to 

Keep America Beautiful. Fee is non-refundable once Community Training Workshop is scheduled.  
Cancellation of the Training Workshop requires notification at least 5 business days in advance.  
Cancellation without notification will require a $500 fee to re-schedule. If de-activated*, re-training may 
be done within 3 years for a fee of $500 plus travel costs for KAB Trainer. We understand the 
responsibility to assist the Team in obtaining the cooperation of government, business and civic sectors 
to complete the Affiliation process including monthly reporting for a period of typically 4 to 6 months. 
We understand we must complete affiliation requirements within one year of Community Training 
Workshop or potentially be de-activated. We understand we must use the name Keep “Community” 
Beautiful as the name of our organization.  

 
_________________________________________       ____________________________ 
Signature (person requesting certification) Date 
 
 
Keep America Beautiful, Inc. 
Affiliate Services Department 
1010 Washington Blvd. 
Stamford, CT  06901 
 

For further information: 
Grace Keegan Massinello  
Director, Affiliate Communications 
Telephone: 203.659.3032 
Email: gmassinello@kab.org

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 143



8.13 

INSTRUCTION FOR APPLICATION  
 
As part of the application we request that the applicant identify a group of community 
representatives to assist in the process to form the affiliate.  
 

Team Leader 
Each Team must have a Team Leader.  The Team Leader must be a good manager and a 
results-oriented leader.  The Team Leader will: 

 Hold Team members accountable for assigned tasks,  

 Supervise arrangements for Team meetings, and 

 Submit monthly progress reports to KAB and State Leader (if applicable). 

 

Team 
The Team shall consist of: 

 6-9 members (an entire existing board/committee may serve as members) 

 members serve on one of 3 task groups for 4-6 months following initial training 

 representatives from business, government and civic sectors 

 individuals knowledgeable in the following areas: 
- business and organizational administration and governance 
- financial management 
- city/county government 
- geography of the community 
- existing litter prevention, beautification and community greening and/or waste reduction 

recycling efforts 
 

Each team member must commit to attend training a 4 hour Training Workshop (1.5 hours for a 
qualifying organization using the migration affiliation).  The Team members will be assigned 
tasks at the end of training and shall agree to accomplish assigned tasks within the 4-6 months 
necessary for certification. The following profiles are provided to assist you in identifying people 
to serve on Team. 

 

Team: Organizational Structure Task Group* 
Team members will be responsible for creating the organizational structure and administration 
in order to ensure the long-term success for the affiliate. Affiliates are typically either formed as 
part of a government entity or form as a non-profit. KAB provides templates for all documents. 
Team will be responsible for: 

 
Governance Documents 

 Draft documents and submit to Team and/or government for approval e.g.  

 Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws (if applicable nonprofit corporation) 

 Resolution/Executive Order/Ordinance (if applicable government entity) 

 
Identity 

 Mission Statement 

 Logo Design 

 
Administration 

 Determine board member responsibilities 

 Member recruitment 

 Executive Director job description 

 Design one year operational budget 

 
*A qualifying organization using the migration affiliation process will submit all applicable 
documents from the list above. 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 144



8.13 

 

Team: Community Appearance Index – Litter Index Task Group 
Team members will be responsible for overseeing the completion of the Litter Index.  The Litter 
Index is a visual assessment of your community.  
 
Litter Index Tasks: 

 Prepare local scoring map 

 Enlist 3-6 volunteers to perform the Litter Index 

 Conduct Index and compile data 
 

Team: Focus Area Survey Task Group 
Team members will be responsible for completing the Focus Area Survey, a fact-gathering 
document that examines current educational programs relating to litter prevention, 
beautification and community greening, and waste reduction and recycling, existing ordinances 
and enforcement practices, and available resources and tools. City or county governmental 
representatives are especially suited for this area of work.  

 
Focus Area Survey Tasks:  

 Identify relevant resources in government agencies, businesses and civic organizations 

 Complete and compile survey 
 
The last two task groups will be asked to work together to complete observations about what 
was learned from the Community Appearance Index - Litter Index and Focus Area Survey and 
may provide recommendations. The Observations and Recommendations, if provided, will be 
used in the Affiliation Training Workshop.  

 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 145



CITY OF DAPHNE 
RESOLUTION 2014-24 

 
AGREEMENT:  ALDOT 

 
Project: ACOA61155-ATRP (001), ATRIP 02-05-35 - Resurfacing Windsor & 

Ridgewood Drive (1.226 Miles) City of Daphne - Baldwin County 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama as follows: 

 

1. That the City of Daphne, Alabama enter into an agreement with the State of Alabama, 

acting by and through the Alabama Department of Transportation for: 

 

The resurfacing on Windsor Drive and Ridgewood Drive from North Main Street 

to Bayview Drive Length – 1.226 miles 

Project# ACOA61155-ATRP (001), ATRIP# 02-05-35 

 

Which Agreement is before this Council; 

 

2. That the Agreement be executed in the name of the City, by its Mayor, for and on its 

behalf; and 

 

3. That the agreement be attested by the City Clerk and the seal of the City be affixed 

thereto. 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that upon the completion of the execution of the 

Agreement by all parties that a copy of such Agreement be kept on file by the City Clerk, 

Finance Director and Public Works Director. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED this ________ day of ____________, 2014. 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Dane Haygood, Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

 

I, the undersigned qualified and acting clerk of the City of Daphne, Alabama, do hereby 

certify that the above and foregoing is a true copy of a Resolution passed and adopted by the City 

Council of the City of Daphne at a regular meeting of such Council held on the _____ day of 

______________, 2014, and that such resolution is on file in the City Clerk’s office. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official seal of 

the City on the ____________ day of __________________, 2014. 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 146



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 147



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 148



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 149



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 150



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 151



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 152



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 153



May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 154



RESOLUTION NUMBERc ____ _ 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama as follows: 

I c That the City enters into an agreement with the State of Alabama, acting by and 
through the Alabama Department of Transportation for: 

The resurfacing on Windsor Drive and Ridgewood Drive from North Main Street to 
Bayview Drivec Length - I c226 miles 
Project# ACOA61155-ATRP (001), ATRIP# 02-05-35 

2c That the agreement be executed in the name of the City, by its Mayor, for and on its 
behalf 

3c That the agreement be attested by the City Clerk and the seal of the City affixed 
theretoc 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that upon the completion of the execution of the 
agreement by all parties, that a copy of such agreement be kept on file by the City Clerk 

Passed, adopted and approved this __ day of ________ , 20 

ATTESTED: 

City Clerk Mayor, City of Daphne 

I, the undersigned qualified and acting clerk of the City of Daphne, Alabama, do 
hereby certify that the above and foregoing is a true copy of a resolution passed and adopted 
by the City Council of the City named therein, at a regular meeting of such Council held on 
the _~ day of , 20 _~, and that such resolution is on file in 
the City Clerk's officec 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the official 
seal of the City on the _~ day of ,20 

City Clerk 

SEAL 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 155



 
 
 
 
 

RESOLUTION 2014-25 
 

A Resolution Authorizing Issuance of  
Credit Cards: Community Development & Revenue 

 
 
WHEREAS, Resolution 1996-45 adopted July 15, 1996, authorized the issuance 
of a City of Daphne credit card to certain department heads; and 
  
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne now deems it necessary to authorize the issuance 
of an additional credit card to the Community Development & Revenue for training 
and travel. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the Mayor and City Council of the 
City of Daphne that Section 1 of Resolution 1996-45 is hereby amended to 
include Community Development & Revenue.  All other provisions of Resolution 
1996-45 remain in full force and effect. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DAPHNE, ALABAMA, this ______ day of ______________, 2014. 
 
 
 
 
     _________________________________ 
     Dane Haygood, Mayor 
      
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
____________________________ 
Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 156



RESOLUTION NO.  2014-26 

 

2014-J-OIL & LUBRICANTS 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne is required under section 41-16-20 of the Code of Alabama to 
secure competitive bids for items in excess of $15,000; and 
 

WHEREAS, The City of Daphne acknowledges that the cost for the OIL & LUBRICANTS will 
exceed this amount; and 
 

WHEREAS, Staff has reviewed the bids for the OIL & LUBRICANTS and determined that the bid 
as presented is reasonable; and 
 

WHEREAS, Staff recommends the bid for the OIL & LUBRICANTS be awarded to Martin Energy 
Services, LLC.. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, THAT THE MAYOR 

AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby accept the bid of Martin Energy 
Services, LLC. for unit cost listed as attached herein and made a part hereof for BID 
SPECIFICATION NO. 2014-J-OIL & LUBRICANTS. 

Product Description Quantity/Case   Unit 

Martin Energy 

Services 

 SUPREME 5W-20 Case of 12 - 1 Qts 33.98 

CASTROL EDGE SYNTHETIC 
10 W40 Case of 6 - 1 Qts 48.16 

 DELO 15W40 Case of 12 - 1 Qts 41.36 

DELO 15 W40  Case - 6 - 1Gal 41.36 

Havoline syn. ATF Multi-vechicle Case of 12 - 1 Qts 64.62 

Havoline ATF+4 Case of 12 - 1 Qts 59.00 

 1000 THF 5 Gallon Pail 49.80 

 Rando Hb 68 5 Gallon Pail 53.70 

Rando Bb 46 5 Gallon Pail 53.70 

 Rando Hb 32 5 Gallon Pail 53.10 

GEAR SAE 80W-90 5 Gallon Pail 60.42 

GEAR LUBRICANT 
Case of 12 - 1.8 lb 

Bottles 46.88 

Dexos Synthetic 5W-30 
Case of 6 - 1 qt 

Bottles 19.67 

Syngard Fleet 0w-40 
Case of 12 - 1 qt 

Bottles 44.21 

Delo Grease EP2 4-10/14 oz. 110.41 

Delo Grease EP2 1/35 Bucket 106.21 

 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS         day of                          ,2014.                                                              
 
 
  _________________________________ 

                                                                        Dane Haygood, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  
May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 157



RESOLUTION NO.  2014-27 

2014-I-PARK CHEMICALS 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne is required under section 41-16-20 of the Code 
of Alabama to secure competitive bids for items in excess of $15,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne acknowledges that the cost for the PARK 
CHEMICALS will exceed this amount; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff has reviewed the bids for the PARK CHEMICALS and 
determined that the bid as presented is reasonable; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff recommends the bid for the PARK CHEMICALS be awarded to 
John Deere Landscapes, Inc.. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, 
THAT THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby 
accept the bid of John Deere Landscapes, Inc. for unit cost listed as attached 
herein and made a part hereof for BID SPECIFICATION NO. 2014-I-PARK 
CHEMICALS. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DAPHNE, ALABAMA, THIS                  day of                  , 2014 
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                  

_____________________________ 
                                                                       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
         
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

 
 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 158



RESOLUTION NO.  2014-28 

2014-K-JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 
 

 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne is required under section 41-16-20 of the Code 
of Alabama to secure competitive bids for items in excess of $15,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne acknowledges that the cost for the JANITORIAL 
SUPPLIES will exceed this amount; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff has reviewed the bids for the JANITORIAL SUPPLIES and 
determined that the bid as presented is reasonable; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff recommends the bid for the JANITORIAL SUPPLIES be 
awarded to Dade Paper. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, THAT THE 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby accept the bid of 
Dade Paper for unit cost as bid herein and made a part hereof for BID 
SPECIFICATION NO. 2014-K-JANITORIAL SUPPLIES. 

 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, THIS             day of                        , 2014. 
                                      
                       

           
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                              
                       ___________________________ 

      Dane Haygood, Mayor 

       
ATTEST:   

 

 
___________________________              

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  
        
 
 
 
 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 159



ORDINANCE 2014-20  
 
 

Recreation HVAC Upgrade 
 

 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2013-50 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2014 
Budget on September 23, 2013; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2014 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2014 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, monies were appropriated in the amount of $14,000 in the FY2014 
Budget to purchase a new Air Conditioner for the Recreation Facility; and 
 
WHEREAS, after a recent evaluation of the HVAC system it was found that 
additional upgrades in the amount of $21,625 are needed to keep the HVAC 
system functional for Recreational activities. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds in the amount of  $21,625  from the General Fund are hereby 
appropriated and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2014 budget for a Recreation 
HVAC Upgrade total project cost of $35,625. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2014. 
 
                          
    

 
_________________________________ 

                                                                          Dane Haygood. , Mayor 
       
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

 
 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 160



CITY OF DAPHNE 

ORDINANCE 2014-21 

 
CANCELLATION OF:  WEBSITE INTEGRATION FOR ANIMAL 

SHELTER & LIBRARY DONATIONS AND CLOSE CREDIT CARD 

DONATION BANK ACCOUNT 
 
WHEREAS,  Ordinance  2012-37 was  approved  and  adopted  on June 6, 2012 to 
appropriate $1,970 set up websites for acceptance of donation via credit 
card and a special bank account was set up for these collections ; and 

 
WHEREAS,  $500 was transferred from the General Fund to open the new bank 
account; and 

 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the setup of this online donation process and the setup of the 
bank account no donations have been received; and 

 
WHEREAS, fees in the amount of $523 have been charged for this website integration 
link in addition to the $1,970 set up fee; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined it to be in the best interest of the City to 

c lose th is websi te  in tegrat ion and bank account ; and 
 

NOW,  THEREFORE,  BE IT  ORDAINED  by the City Council of Daphne, Alabama that 
the website integration for online donations be removed and the Credit Card Donation 
bank account be closed. 

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED  BY THE MAYOR  & CITY COUNCIL  OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE,  ALABAMA, THIS              DAY OF ______________________, 2014. 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 

 
 
 

REBECCA A. HAYES, 

CITY CLERK 

DANE HAYGOOD, 

MAYOR 

 
 

 
71 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 161



ORDINANCE 2014-22 

 

An Ordinance Appropriating Funds for Hazardous Weather / Emergency Duty Pay  

during the January 2014 Ice Storm 

 

 

WHEREAS, Ordinance 2013-50 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2014 Budget on September 

23, 2013; and 

 

WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2014 budget, the City Council has 

determined that certain appropriations are required and should be approved and made a part of the 

Fiscal Year 2014 budget; and 

 

WHEREAS, an ice storm in January created a hazardous weather situation and safety issues for 

citizens and businesses in the City of Daphne; and 

 

WHEREAS, this ice storm required certain City personnel to respond to the emergency situation 

creating an additional personnel cost of $37,788; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne has approved Ordinance 2014-15 which 

revised Sections 9.1, 9.10 and 10.6 of the City of Daphne Employee Handbook addressing 

hazardous weather / emergency duty pay for non-exempt employees; and  

 

WHEREAS, this policy will be applied retroactively to Public Safety employees pay affected by 

the January 2014 ice storms requiring an estimated additional appropriation amount of $17,212. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, 

that the Fiscal Year 2014 Budget is hereby amended to include a total General Fund appropriation 

not to exceed $55,000  (PPD 2-12-14-$37,788 + $17,212) for the purpose of retroactive pay for 

employees affected by the January 2014 ice storms. 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne, 

Alabama, this   ____     day of  ______________    , 2014. 

 

 

             

_________________________________ 

                                                                       Dane Haygood, Mayor 

           

 

ATTEST: 
 

___________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  

 

 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 162



CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2014-23 

 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A POLICY  

FOR EVENTS HELD WITHIN THE CITY OF DAPHNE 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne has determined that it is in the 

public interest to provide access to city-maintained roads for the purpose of holding parades, 

races, and other special events; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, to ensure that City resources are properly utilized, and to ensure the safety 

of participants for these events, the Council sees a need to provide for a process or procedure for 

the administration of parades, races, and other events requiring City assistance; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, Ordinance 1968-7 is repealed in its entirety and replaced with the 

following. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA: 

 

 SECTION 1.  DEFINITIONS 

 

 Unless the context clearly indicates a different meaning, the words, terms and phrases 

used in this Ordinance shall have the following respective meanings: 

 

 "City" shall mean the City of Daphne in the State of Alabama. 

 

 “Complete application form” shall mean a properly filled out application and all 

 supporting documents.  

 

 "Person" shall mean any person, entity, firm, corporation, partnership, association, 

 administrator, trustee, or other fiduciary. 

 

 “Race” shall mean any long distance running event, which may but not necessarily be 

 timed, that requires closure of City roads for the safety of participants. 

 

 “Band” shall mean a band, DJ, radio, CD player or any means to produce music outside. 

 

 “Special Event” is any event, including but not limited to parades, races, use of bands, 

 pastry sales or picketing, that significantly impacts the use of streets, roads, or other 

 public place in the City. 

 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 163



ORDINANCE 2014-23               POLICY FOR EVNTS HELD IN CITY OF DAPHNE              Page 2 of 6 
 

 “Parade” is any formal public procession, march, ceremony, show, exhibition, pageant, or 

 a group of persons or vehicles containing persons moving forward in an orderly, 

 ceremonious, or solemn procession, or any similar display in or upon any street, park or 

 other public place in the City.    

 

 “Permit” is a permit as required by this Ordinance. 

 

 “Person” is any person, firm, partnership, association, corporation, company, or 

 organization of any kind. 

 

 “City Council” is the City Council of the City of Daphne. 

 

 “Street” is any part of a public right-of-way in the City, including, but not limited to, 

 that part known as a sidewalk. 

 

 SECTION 2.   APPLICATION PROCESS 

 

 1. The City will create an approved Special Events Application Form.  The current 

version of the Special Events Application Form is herein attached as an example but is not the 

definitive form.  The form may be altered periodically by the City Council or its designee.  This 

Form will be the only manner in which a request for City approval of all special events to include 

parades, races, use of bands, doughnut sales or picketing will be entertained. 

 

 2. If a permit is issued, said permit will exempt the Special Event from Ordinance 

2012-35, popularly known as the Noise Ordinance. 

 

 3. Application forms will be available upon request from the City Clerk’s office or 

online at www.daphneal.com. 

 

 4. No person shall engage in, participate in, aid, form or start any Special Event, 

unless a permit shall have been obtained from the City Council.   

 

 5. This Ordinance shall not apply to: 

 

a. Funeral processions; 

b. Students going to and from school classes or participating in 

 educational activities, provided such conduct is under the 

 immediate direction and supervision of the proper school 

 authorities; 

c. Any governmental agency acting within the scope of its functions. 

 

 SECTION 3.  APPLICATION SUBMISSION DEADLINES 

 

 1. Applicants may not submit a permit for an event earlier than one (1) year before 

its scheduled date of occurrence. 

 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 164

http://www.daphneal.com/


ORDINANCE 2014-23               POLICY FOR EVNTS HELD IN CITY OF DAPHNE              Page 3 of 6 
 

 2. Persons seeking to have their permit approved in a timely manner should 

complete their application form and submit it to the City Clerk’s Office no later than as described 

below: 

 

a. For events requesting closure of City roads, or with over 200 expected 

participants, a completed application form must be submitted no later than 

sixty (60) days before the event date. 

 

b. For any other events requesting use of City grounds, a completed application 

form must be submitted no later than thirty (30) days before the event date. 

 

c.  All other permits must be submitted no later than fifteen (15) days before the 

event date. 

 

 3. The City Council, where good cause is shown therefore, shall have the authority 

to consider any application hereunder which is filed less than ten (10) days before the date such 

parade is proposed to be conducted. 

 

 SECTION 4.  PERMIT APPROVAL PROCESS 

 

The City Council shall issue a permit as provided for hereunder when, from a consideration of 

the application and from such other information as may otherwise be obtained, they find that: 

  

1. All Special Event permits have been approved by the Fire Chief and Police Chief, 

or their designees. 

 

2. All Special Event permits related to band, parade and race permits, or which may 

impede the flow of traffic, have been approved by the Public Works Director or his 

designee. 

 

3. All Special Event permits to include activity at or around any City park or other 

recreational facility has been approved by the Parks and Recreation Director or his 

designee. 

 

4. The conduct of the Special Event will not require the diversion of so great a 

number of police officers of the City to properly police the line of movement and the 

areas contiguous thereto as to prevent reasonable police protection of the City. 

 

5. The conduct of such Special Event will not require the diversion of so great a 

number of ambulances as to prevent reasonable ambulance services to portions of the 

City. 

 

6. The concentration of persons, animals and vehicles at assembly points of the 

Special Event will not unduly interfere with proper fire and police protection of, or 

ambulance service to, areas contiguous to such assembly areas. 

 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 165



ORDINANCE 2014-23               POLICY FOR EVNTS HELD IN CITY OF DAPHNE              Page 4 of 6 
 

7. The conduct of such Special Event will not interfere with the movement of 

firefighting equipment in route to a fire. 

 

8. The conduct of the Special Event is not reasonably likely to cause injury to 

persons or property, to provoke disorderly conduct or create a disturbance. 

 

9. If the Special Event is a parade, it is scheduled to move from its point of origin to 

its point of termination expeditiously and without unreasonable delays en route. The 

parade will not substantially interrupt the safe and orderly movement of other traffic 

continuous to its route 

 

10. The Special Event is not to be held for the sole purpose of advertising any 

product, goods or event, and is not designed to be held purely for private profit. 

 

 SECTION 5.  DESIGNATED ROUTES AND TIMES FOR SPECIAL  

    EVENTS 

 

1. In addition to completing an application form as noted in Section three above, 

applicants requesting the closure of City roads for events including parades and races will 

be required to specify a route for their event.  Applicants are limited to selecting among 

the provided pre-approved, certified routes. 

 

2. Races may only be held on Saturdays, with set up beginning no earlier than 7 a.m. 

and ending no later than noon.  Roads must be cleared by 10 a.m. 

 

3. Mardi Gras events must be held in accordance with the provisions of [Ordinances 

2003-17 and 2005-03]. 

 

4. The number of races requiring road closures within one calendar year shall be 

limited to eight (8).  This number shall not include events associated with national 

holidays, weekday runs or walks associated with the normal operation of public and 

private schools, Mardi Gras parades and any parade organized by a school within the 

limits of the City of Daphne. 

 

5. The City Council shall act upon the application for a Special Event permit within 

a reasonable time but no later than thirty (30) days after the filing thereof.  If the City 

Council fails to act within those thirty days, the application is deemed denied.  If the City 

Council disapproves the application, the City Clerk shall mail to the applicant within six 

(6) days after the date upon which the Council acted, a notice of the City Council action, 

stating the reasons for denial of the permit. 

 

SECTION 6.  CITY LISTED AS EVENT SPONSOR 

 

1. All events requesting road closures or use of City grounds shall be required to list 

the City as an event sponsor on any advertising or merchandise (including but not limited 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 166



ORDINANCE 2014-23               POLICY FOR EVNTS HELD IN CITY OF DAPHNE              Page 5 of 6 
 

to t-shirts, flyers, signs, and newspaper advertisements).  Listing may include use of the 

City logo if deemed necessary by the City Council or its designee.` 

 

 2. Permittee shall comply with all permit directions and conditions and will follow 

 all applicable laws and ordinances. 

 

 4. The parade chairman or other person leading such activity shall carry the Special 

Event permit upon his person during the conduct of the Special Event. 

 

 SECTION 7.  PUBLIC CONDUCT DURING SPECIAL EVENT 

 

 1. No person shall unreasonably hamper, obstruct, impede, or interfere with any 

Special Event or Special Event assembly or with any person, vehicle or animal participant or 

used in a Special Event.  The permit language may put reasonable restrictions as to the conduct 

of the Special Event including but not limited to location and timing. 

 

 2. No driver of a vehicle, street car or trackless trolley shall drive between the 

vehicles or persons comprising a parade when such vehicles or persons are in motion and are 

conspicuously designated as a parade. 

 

 3. The City Council shall have the authority to prohibit or restrict the parking of 

vehicles along the highway or part thereof constituting a part of the Special Event.  The City 

Council may cause the Police Chief to post signs to such affect and it shall be unlawful for any 

person to park or leave unattended any vehicle in violation thereof. 

 

 SECTION 8.  PENALTIES 

 

 Any person or persons or association of persons, violating any of the provisions of the 

foregoing sections, shall be guilty of a misdemeanor and on conviction shall be punished by a 

fine of not less than $25 nor more than the maximum allowed by law and may also be sentenced 

to imprisonment or hard labor for not exceeding six (6) months. 

 

 SECTION 9.  RIGHT TO CANCEL/REVOCATION OF PERMIT 

 

 1. The City of Daphne reserves the right to cancel or postpone events for any reason 

deemed necessary by the City Council. 

 

  

 2. The City Council shall have the authority to revoke a parade permit issued 

hereunder upon failure of the applicants or participants to comply with the standards for issuance 

and the provisions herein set forth and such authority may be delegated to the officer or such 

other person designated by the City Council to supervise said parade. 

  

  

 

 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 167



ORDINANCE 2014-23               POLICY FOR EVNTS HELD IN CITY OF DAPHNE              Page 6 of 6 
 

 

SECTION 10. FEES 

 

 1. There are no fees for special events but donations to the City to offset costs may 

be accepted. 

 2. Refunds for donation associated with an Special Event permit are authorized only 

if written notice of cancellation is given to the City Clerk’s office no later than 3:00 p.m. on the 

day before the event is scheduled to occur. 

 

 SECTION 11.  APPROVED PERMITS 

 

 1. Within six (6) business days of approval, the applicant will be notified and a copy 

of the permit shall be supplied to them.  All approved permits shall additionally be submitted to 

any appropriate City departments for adequate notification. 

 

SECTION 12.  SEVERABILITY 

 

  If any section, subsection, clause, provision or part of this Ordinance shall be held 

to be invalid or unconstitutional in a court of competent jurisdiction, such holding or holding 

shall not affect any other section, subsection, clause, provision or part of this Ordinance which is 

in itself and of itself valid and constitutional. 

 

 SECTION 13. EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its 

approval by the City Council of the City of Daphne and publication as required by law. 

   

  

 ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA ON THIS THE ____ DAY OF _______________, 2014. 
 

 

 CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

 

 _________________________________                                             

        DANE HAYGOOD, MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

___________________________________                                                                     

REBECCA A. HAYES, CITY CLERK 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 168



Date of Application:

Organization Name:

Contact Name:

Address:
City/State/Zip CodeStreet / P.O. Box

Primary Phone Number: Secondary:

E-mail Address:

Event Name:

Event Location:

Permit Requested: Parade/Run BandEvent/Fundraiser

Event Date:

Start Time:

# Participants/Vehicles:

Stop Time: Assembly Time:
Parades/Runs Only

Special Requests:

Contact Information

Event Information

Special Instructions

Approval: Internal Use Only
Date Routed:

Fire Dept:

Police Dept:

Public Works:

Council Member:
   District #                Signature

Parks & Recreation:
Only required if event interrupts traffi c near Daphne parks

For Special Event/Band Permits:

Not valid unless stamped “Approved”

Parade/Run Permits ONLY

Fee Paid: $

Route Selection: 1 2 3 4

Insurance Filed N/A

N/A

City Council:
Date of Approval

For Parade/Run Permits & Use of City Grounds:

Waived

Road Closures Requested: Yes No

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 169



ORDINANCE 2014-24 
 

 Appropriating Funds for Survey, Design and Letting – City-Wide Infrastructure Projects 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2013-50 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2014 Budget on September 23, 
2013; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2014 budget, the City Council has determined 
that certain appropriations are required and should be approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2014 
budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne received 16.5" of rainfall for the period of April 29-30, 2014; and 
 
WHEREAS, as a result of such heavy rains, many streets and their drainage systems located within the 
City of Daphne sustained severe damage and require repairs in order to prevent further damage to the 
City's infrastructure; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne will be making application with the NRCS (Natural Resources 
Conservation Service) and FEMA (Federal Emergency Management Agency) for partial and/or full 
reimbursement of expenses incurred for such public infrastructure repairs as described below; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is necessary to complete engineering design in a timely manner and solicit bids/quotes 
from qualified contractors at the same time reimbursable funding is being determined by the NRCS and 
FEMA. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED, that: 

1. The City Council of the City of Daphne deems these projects key to the recovery efforts 
associated with this rain event and the repair of these public infrastructures is necessary to 
preserve the health, safety, and convenience of the public. 

2. Fiscal Year 2014 Budget is hereby amended to include an appropriation in the amount of 
$83,508.00 from Capital Reserve Fund for design and letting to the below described qualified 
engineers and repair projects (attached as exhibit “A”): 

 
Project    Engineer  Survey, Design 
       & Letting 

a. 04-2014-RE3 - Lancaster Way Preble-Rish  $  3,675.00 
b. 04-2014-RE4 - CR13 Drainage Volkert   $ 14,250.00 
c. 04-2014-RE5 - Gator Alley- HMR   $  4,020.00 
d. 04-2014-RE6 - Rolling Hill Drive Hatch-Mott  $48,438.00 
e. 04-2014-RE7 - Piedmont Circle Preble-Rish  $  7,875.00 
f. 04-2014-RE8 – Edgar Circle/ 

  Melanie Loop HMR   $14,250.00 
   Total Survey, Design & Letting Cost:  $92,508.00 
  

3. The Mayor is hereby authorized to make application with the NRCS and FEMA for the 
reimbursement of such funds and to sign and execute all documents associated with the 
described projects. 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, this 19
th
 day of May, 

2014. 

 
              

       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
Attest: 
 
      
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

May 19, 2014 Council Meeting 170


	AGENDA
	ROLL CALL
	Council Minutes - May 2   -  Emergency Special Called
	Council Minutes - May 5
	Council Work Session Minutes - May 12
	Huntingdon College
	Report of Standing Committees
	Finance Minutes
	Backup to Finance 1
	Backup to Finance 2
	Buildings & Property Minutes
	Ordinance Committee Minutes
	Public Works Minutes 04-21-2014
	Beautification Minutes   5-7-2014
	Museum Minutes April 14
	Environmental Advisory Committee Minutes - 04-28-2014
	Report of Special Boards
	DRA Minutes
	Report of Officers
	Resolutions & Ordinances
	2014-22 - RES - GOVDEALS COM-2
	2014-23 -RES -  Keep Daphne Beautiful Application-Membership-2
	2014-24 -  RES - ATRIP 02-05-35 ALDOT Resolution
	Backup to 2014-24 - RES
	2014-25 - RES - Credit Card - Comm Dev  Rev
	2014-26 - RES - Oil-Lubricants
	2014-27 - RES - ParksChemicals
	2014-28 - RES - JanitorialSupplies
	2014-20 - ORD - Recreation HVAC Upgrade
	2014-21 - ORD - Animal Shelter-Library Credit Cd Donation Account Cancellation
	2014-22 - ORD - Emergency Duty Pay per new policy Ord 2014-15
	2014-23 - ORD - Policy for  Events
	Backup to 2014-23 - ORD - Permit form
	2014-24 - ORD - Infrastructure Proj-City Wide-April Rains-NRCS-FEMA

	Date of Application: 
	EventFundraiser: Off
	ParadeRun: Off
	Band: Off
	Organization Name: 
	Contact Name: 
	Email Address: 
	Address: 
	Primary Phone Number: 
	Secondary: 
	Event Name: 
	Event Date: 
	Event Location: 
	ParticipantsVehicles: 
	Start Time: 
	Stop Time: 
	Assembly Time: 
	Special Requests: 
	Special Requests Continued: 
	undefined: Off
	Special Instructions: 
	Date Routed: 
	Fire Dept: 
	Police Dept: 
	Public Works: 
	Parks  Recreation: 
	Council Member: 
	ParadeRun Permits ONLY: 
	Fee Paid: Off
	Insurance Filed: Off
	NA: Off
	NA_2: Off
	Waived: Off
	City Council: 
	Route Selection: Off


